
 

 High Peak Borough Council 

 
 

 
CORPORATE SELECT COMMITTEE AGENDA 
 

You can view the 
agenda online by using 

a smart phone camera 
and scanning the code 
below: 

 
 

Date: 
 

Monday, 27 September 2021 

Time: 
 

6.30 pm 

Venue: 

 

Virtual Meeting 

17 September 2021 

 
PART 1 

1. Apologies for Absence  

2. To receive Disclosures of Interest on any matters before the Committee  

 1. Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
2. Other Interests 

 

3. Any matters referred to the Committee under the call-in procedure  

4. To approve the minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 6) 

5. First Quarter Financial, Procurement and Performance Review 2021/22  

6. Medium Term Financial Plan Update (Pages 7 - 26) 

7. Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme Review & Focus on UC Implications  

8. Vision Derbyshire (Pages 27 - 70) 

9. Select Committee Work Programme (Pages 71 - 76) 

10. Any questions referred to the Executive Member (Member Services to be advised of 
any questions at least 4 days prior to the meeting)  

11. Exclusion of Press and Public  

 To resolve that the press and public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following items of business as there may be disclosure of 

exempt information as defined in Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972 
 

PART II 

12. Exempt Minutes (Pages 77 - 78) 

 

Public Document Pack



 (Paragraph 1, 3 - Information relating to any individual.  
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding that information) ) 

 

13. Joint Venture for the Provision of Facilities Management and Housing Repairs 
(Pages 79 - 122) 

 (Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 

particular person (including the authority holding that information) ) 
 

14. Future High Street Fund Update  

 (Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 

particular person (including the authority holding that information) ) 
 

 
MARK TRILLO 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND MONITORING OFFICER 

 

Membership of Corporate Select Committee 
Councillor T Ashton (Chair) Councillor M Stone (Vice-Chair) 

Councillor J Collins Councillor O Cross 
Councillor S Flower Councillor L Grooby 

Councillor D Lomax Councillor R McKeown 
Councillor G Oakley Councillor K Savage 
Councillor E Siddall Councillor E Thrane 

 



 

 
 

 
 

 High Peak Borough Council 

 
 

CORPORATE SELECT COMMITTEE 
 
 

Meeting: Monday, 26 July 2021 at 6.30 pm in The Octagon, Pavilion Gardens, Buxton 

 
Present: Councillor T Ashton (Chair)   

 
 Councillors J Collins, S Flower, L Grooby, D Kerr (substitute for O Cross), 

D Lomax, R McKeown, G Oakley, K Savage, E Siddall, M Stone and 
E Thrane 
 

 An apology for absence was received from Councillor O Cross 
 

Councillors Barrow, A McKeown and Todd were also in attendance. 
 

22/11 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

(Agenda Item 4) 
 

The Leader advised that the recent recruitment exercise for the Executive 
Director of Finance had been unsuccessful and the process would re-
commence in September. 

 
RESOLVED: 

 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 28 June 2021 be approved as a 
correct record. 

 
22/12 FOURTH QUARTER FINANCIAL, PROCUREMENT AND PERFORMANCE 

REVIEW 2020/21 

(Agenda Item 5) 
 

The Committee considered the Council’s overall performance and financial 
position for the period ended 31 March (“Fourth Quarter 2020/21”). 

 
Members congratulated Keith Pointon on his appointment as Head of 
Finance. 

 
Reference was made to the services areas with significant underspends as 

set out in paragraph 2.5 of the report.  With reference to Carelink, members 
were advised that the underspend was as a result of increased income 
arising from the new Carelink model. 

 
Clarity was sought around the COVID funding, together with the implications 

for the leisure services and Pavilion Gardens, particularly around parking 
income, the withdrawal of furlough etc.  It was further suggested that a 
training session / briefing session be held for all three scrutiny committees 

after the summer around the Council’s Covid Recovery Plan. 
 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



Corporate Select Committee 
Monday, 26 July 2021 

 

2 
 

The implications for the parking income with the loss of the undercroft at 
Pavilion Gardens was queried, to which an update would be provided in due 
course. 

 
Members were advised that the Statement of Accounts were being drawn 

up, and some business grants would go to earmarked reserves for 
distribution this year. 
 

Around performance, concerns were expressed regarding the way in which 
a contract to replace gas pipes on Gamesley was being undertaken, and 

reference made to a recent serious accident.   Members were advised that 
the work was being undertaken by a sub-contractor on behalf of National 
Grid, and not the Council,  but agreed to refer the issue to the Health and 

Safety Advisor and DCC. 
 

Regarding street cleaning, the standards used to achieve grades would be 
circulated.  In response to comments around why only 75% of high risk 
premises had been inspected, it was noted that this due to a number of 

premises being shut during the pandemic.  Training for contracted staff was 
discussed.  
 

With reference to the new layout of the report, members commented that 
there should be more reference to areas for improvement together with a 

link to the action plan and a clearer reference to targets. 
 
RESOLVED: 

 
1. That the Fourth Quarter 2020/21 financial, procurement and performance 

position detailed in Appendices A, B and C and summarised at paragraph 
3.3 of the covering report be noted; 

 
2. That the Executive be recommended to approve the allocation of the 

surplus on the General Fund Revenue Account to reserves as explained in 
Appendix A (paragraph 2.11); 
 

3. That the Executive be recommended to approve the proposal to carry 
forward unspent revenue budget as described in Appendix A (Paragraph 
2.14);   
 

4. That the Executive be recommended to approve the proposals to carry 
forward unspent capital budget as set out in Appendix A (paragraph 6.5 and 
7.5); 
 

5. That the Executive be recommended to approve the write offs as set out in 
Appendix D;  
 

6. That a training session be arranged for all three scrutiny committees around 
the Council’s Covid recovery Plan. 

 
22/13 SELECT COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 

(Agenda Item 6) 
 

A further report around the Joint Venture Project would be presented in 
September or October. 
 Page 4



Corporate Select Committee 
Monday, 26 July 2021 

 

3 
 

It was requested that the review of democracy consider the way in which 
meetings are scheduled to avoid lengthy gaps between meetings, and to 
consider whether meetings could be more flexible i.e. virtual.  

 
It was requested that the workshop around Customer Contact be 

progressed. 
 
RESOLVED: 

 
That subject to the above comments, the Select Committees Work 

Programmes, be noted. 
 

22/14 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

(Agenda Item 8) 
 

RESOLVED: 
 
That the press and public be excluded from the meeting during 

consideration of the following item of business as there may be disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local 

Government Act 1972 
 
 

22/15 EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

(Agenda Item 9) 
 

Regular updates around the Future High Street Fund within Part 2 of the 
agenda were requested. 

 
RESOLVED: 
 

That the exempt minutes of the meeting held on 28 June 2021 be approved 
as a correct record. 

 
22/6 LIFT REPLACEMENT PROCUREMENT 

(Agenda Item 10) 
 

Consideration was given to giving authority to proceed with the procurement 

of the appointment of a main contractor to deliver the Lift replacement 
program. 
 

22/7 APPLICATION FOR WRITE OFF OF NON-RECOVERABLE DEBTS 

(Agenda Item 11) 
 

Approval was sought for the write off of non-recoverable debts. 
 

 
The meeting concluded at 7.30 pm 

 
 
 
CHAIR 

 Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



  

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

 
Report to Corporate Select Committee  

 
27th September 2021 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Appendices Attached 

 Appendix A – Detailed Medium Term Financial Plan Refresh  

 
1. Reason for the Report  

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to update members on the Medium Term Financial 

Plan (MTFP), in preparation for considering the budget (and associated council tax 
and rent levels) in February 2022.   

 
2. Recommendations 

2.1 It is recommended that the Committee:  
 

 Note the updates proposed to the MTFP set in February 2022, including further 
proposed actions and identifies any further areas they wish to see incorporated 

or considered.  
 

 
3. Executive Summary 

 

3.1 The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) aims to ensure resources are directed 

effectively and efficiently towards delivery of the Corporate Plan. This refresh of 

the MTFP builds on the existing strategy and updates assumptions to reflect 

changes to income, costs and funding. It is not a complete recasting of a new 

plan, or a finalised, balanced longer term plan. Those products will be produced 

as part of the budget setting considerations in February 2022. The purpose of this 

refresh is threefold:  

TITLE: Medium Term Financial Plan Refresh 

 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER Cllr Alan Barrow - Executive Councillor for  

Corporate Services and Finance 
 

CONTACT OFFICERS: John Betts – Interim Executive Director 

Keith Pointon – Head of Finance 

WARDS INVOLVED:  Non-Specific 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



  

 To update the MTFP produced in February 2021, for known or likely 

changes 

 To highlight service and policy issues likely to impact on budget 

considerations later in the year 

 To provide contextual information so that other issues that may impact on 

short and longer term budgetary issues can be identified and discussed  

3.2 The detailed refresh considers each constituent part of the MTFP as set in 

February 2021 and RAG (Red, Amber, Green) rates each aspect. The current 

capital programme, budget pressures identified in the 2021/22 budget, council tax, 

business rates and levels of reserves all remain substantively robust. Inflation 

assumptions will need to be revised and the delivery of savings plans and fees 

and charges proposals will need to be closely monitored. There is considerable 

uncertainty hanging over the Government’s reviews of business rates and fair 

funding (including new homes bonus), but the likelihood is that these reviews will 

be postponed another year.   

3.3 So, the overall conclusion is that the MTFP remains fundamentally robust and the 
following actions will need to be taken prior to it being agreed alongside the 

2022/23 budget in February 2022: 

 Forecasts are rolled forward to include 2025/26 

 Inflation provision is reviewed alongside economic data to establish 
whether structural inflation is higher than previously forecast 

 Any service budget demands are built in 

 The outcomes of any Government reviews (on council tax, business rates 
and new homes bonus) are considered 

 Any changes to the capital programme (including any identified capital / 
revenue implications of major projects) are reflected 

 Decisions on any outstanding savings proposals and fees and charges are 
also reflected  

  
 

4.       How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 The successful delivery of all corporate priorities is dependent upon the effective 
targeting of scarce resources,  which is the subject of this report. 

 
5.       Options and Analysis 
 

5.1 Detailed Analysis is contained within the main body of the Report. 
 

6. Implications 
 

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 

None. 
 

6.2 Workforce 

None. 

Page 8



  

 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality 
and Diversity policies. 

 
6.4 Financial Considerations 

There are substantial financial considerations contained throughout the 
report. 
 

6.5 Legal 
None. 

 
16.6 Sustainability 

None. 

 
6.7   External Consultation 

  None. 
 
6.8           Risk A    Risk  Assessment 

There are a number of risks to the financial position presented, which are 
identified and explained in the detailed report (and are substantively 

mitigated by the level of reserves). 
 
 

 
JOHN BETTS 

Interim Executive Director Finance and Revenues & Benefits 

 
Web Links and 

Background Papers 

Location Contact details 

 
Report appendix 

 
Moorlands House 

 
Keith Pointon 

01538 395400 Ext. 4193 
 

 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A – Detailed MTFP refresh 

                               

 

 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 

  

 

 

 

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN             

2021/22 to 2024/25 

SEPTEMBER 2021 REFRESH 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

September 2021 

Page 11



 

1. Introduction 

 

1.1. The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) is a key element of the Council’s budget 
and policy framework. It aims to ensure resources are directed effectively and 

efficiently towards delivery of the Corporate Plan. It describes the financial 
direction of the Council for planning purposes and outlines the financial pressures 
the Council is likely to experience over the next 4 years. This process facilitates 

the Council in planning the prudent management of its finances, in building 
resilience and in providing for the needs of residents over the long term.   
 

1.2. The MTFP is updated regularly to fit in with the budget cycle. This refresh of the 

MTFP builds on the existing strategy and updates assumptions to reflect changes 
to income, costs and funding. It also includes an updated assessment of key risks 

and a presentation of longer term financial issues which have the potential to 
impact on the Council.  At this point in time, this is not a complete recasting of a 
new plan, or a finalised, balanced longer term plan. Those products will be 

produced as part of the budget setting considerations in February 2022. The 
purpose of this refresh is threefold: 
 

 To update the MTFP produced in February 2021, for known or likely 
changes 

 To highlight service and policy issues likely to impact on budget 

considerations later in the year 

 To provide contextual information so that other issues that may impact on 

short and longer term budgetary issues can be identified and discussed  

1.3. The rest of this report follows the following structure: 

 

 Section 
Strategic priorities of the Council and summary of the current (as of February 
2021) 2021/22 budget and medium term financial plan  

2 & 3 

Update on impact of the pandemic and 2020/21 outturn on the MTFP  4 
Update on capital programme (and revenue consequences) 5 
Update on inflationary pressures and investments  6 
Update on budget demand and budget growth, including fees and charges 7 
Update on local taxes – Council Tax, Business Rates & New Homes Bonus 8 
Impact of savings plans  9 
Use and level of reserves  10 
Summary of financial risks and next steps  11 

 
2. Strategic Priorities 

 

2.1. The Medium Term Financial Plan is driven by local priorities. The Council’s 
spending strategy is set out in the Corporate Plan formally adopted by members of 

the Council. 
 

2.2. The Council’s 4-year Corporate Plan (2019-2023) establishes the Council’s vision, 

corporate objectives and key priorities for the medium term.  It in effect establishes 
the Council’s commitment in the delivery of service and community leadership to 

Page 12



the residents of High Peak. The Medium Term Financial Plan is updated to reflect 

the contents of the plan and to ensure that resources are directed towards key 
priorities.  
 

2.3. The Council’s vision is expressed as follows: “Working together to protect and 

invest in the High Peak with the Council on your side”. 
 
2.4. This vision is articulated further by four aims: 

 

 Supporting our communities to create a healthier, safer, cleaner High Peak 

 A responsive, smart, financially resilient and forward thinking council 

 Protect and create jobs in the High Peak by supporting economic growth, 

development & regeneration 

 Protect and improve the environment including responding to the climate 

emergency 
 

2.5. These aims are supported by several objectives which also provide the framework 
for the delivery of service plans. The Council’s objectives are summarised below:  

 
 

Supporting our communities to create a healthier, safer, cleaner High Peak 

 Effective relationship with strategic partners 

 Effective provision of high-quality public amenities, clean streets and environmental health 
 Fit for purpose housing that meets the need of tenants and residents 

 Practical support of community safety arrangements 

 Provision of high quality leisure facilities both in formal leisure centres and swimming pools 
and out in our communities 

 Work with our partners and the community to address health inequality, food and fuel 
poverty, mental health and loneliness 

A responsive, smart, financially resilient and forward thinking Council 

 Ensure our future financial resilience can be financially sustainable whilst offering value for 
money 

 Ensure our services are readily available to all our residents in the appropriate channels and 
provided “right first time” 

 Invest in our staff to ensure we have the internal expertise to deliver our plans by supporting 
our high performing and well-motivated workforce 

 More effective use of Council assets to benefit our communities 

 Effective procurement with a focus on local businesses 

 Use innovation, technology and partnership with others to help improve the efficiency of 
services, improve customer satisfaction and reduce our impact on the environment 

Protect and create jobs in the High Peak by supporting economic growth, development & 

regeneration 

 Encourage business start-ups and enterprises 

 Work to create flourishing town centres and thriving high streets that support the local 
economy 

 Promote tourism to maximise local benefit 

 High quality development and building control with an “open for business approach” 

 Car parking arrangements that meet the needs of residents, businesses and visitors 

 Working to support existing local businesses, both large and small across the High Peak as 
they respond to future challenges 

 Supporting the development of innovative green jobs and businesses across the High Peak 
 

 

Page 13



Protect and Improve the Environment including responding to the climate emergency 

 Effective recycling and waste management 

 Effective provision of quality parks and open spaces 

 Meeting the challenge of climate change and working with residents and business across 
the High Peak to implement the climate change action plan 

 

 
2.6. The Council maintains a Strategic Alliance with Staffordshire Moorlands District 

Council, formed around the principle of shared services in the pursuit of efficiency 
and realisation of savings. The Strategic Alliance has enabled the implementation 
and transformation of a joint management structure and services, consequently 

realising significant efficiency savings. The Council intends to continue to drive 
savings and service improvements through collaboration with its Alliance partner. 

 
 
3. Current Spending Levels 

 

3.1. The starting point for the development of the MTFP is the current level of spending 

and the approved capital expenditure commitments. 
 

3.2. The Council’s current year (2021/22) General Fund budget (and its funding) is 

summarised as follows: 

Budget Heading 2021/22 

  £ 

Employees 10,564,990 

Premises 4,284,800 

Transport 401,560 

Supplies & Services 9,872,600 

Benefits 82,460 

Borrowing 1,824,340 

Parish Grant re Council Tax Support 51,320 

Financing Costs 22,130 
    

Total Expenditure 27,104,200 
    

Fees and Charges / Other Income (8,687,210) 

Interest Receipts  (40,290) 

HRA Recharges (6,406,160) 

Capital Recharges (231,240) 
    

Net Expenditure 11,739,300 
    

Council Tax (6,193,160) 

LCTS Compensation Grant (126,330) 

Business Rates Retention (3,710,270) 

COVID-19 Grant Funding (529,010) 

New Homes Bonus (341,770) 

Contribution to / (use of) EM 
Reserves* 

(3,383,880) 

Contribution to / (use of) Contingency (901,880) 

Collection Fund** 3,542,000 

    
Total Financing (11,644,300) 

    

Page 14



 

 
 

 
 

 
3.3. The proposed 2021/22 Housing Revenue Account Budget is detailed below: 
 

Budget Heading 

2021/22 

Projection 

  £ 

 

Repairs & Maintenance  

4,409,480 

Supervision & Management  2,739,230 

Rates, Rents, Taxes, Other Charges  109,130 

Other Operating Expenditure 782,430 

Depreciation & Impairment Charges 2,099,030 

Interest & Debt Management Charges 2,693,060 

HRA Contribution to Capital Programme 4,192,640 

    
Total Expenditure 17,025,000 

Dwellings Rents (14,483,110) 

Non - Dwelling Rents & Other Income (671,660) 

    
Total Income (15,154,770) 

    (Surplus) / Deficit for year 1,870,230 

Use of Reserves (1,870,230) 

In Year Deficit (Surplus) 0 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Deficit / (Surplus) 95,000 

    

New Efficiency Requirement  (95,000) 

    

In-Year Deficit / (Surplus) 0 

    

Page 15



3.4. The medium-term projection for capital commitments approved by Members in 

February 2021 is detailed below: -   
 

Service Area  2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 Total  

  £ £ £ £ £ £ 
Housing  170,000 374,000 925,000 504,000     504,000  2,477,000 

Asset Management  1,557,060 3,586,450 4,701,060 1,518,800     880,250  12,243,620 
Housing Grants 330,000 489,110 489,110 489,110     489,110  2,286,440 
ICT Strategy 198,360 67,050 50,000 50,000       50,000  415,410 

Fleet Management     162,750  1,527,330 187,500 698,080       88,500  2,664,160 
Other Schemes 283,040 2,355,150 40,000             -                -    2,678,190 
Total Revised Programme  2,701,210 8,399,090 6,392,670 3,259,990  2,011,860  22,764,820 

Financed by:-             
External Contributions  523,070 3,762,090 1,456,770 489,110     489,110  6,720,150 
Planning Obligations  43,000             -                -                -                -    43,000 

Capital Receipts(Land)        57,180  250,000 905,000 2,255,880     998,000  4,466,060 
Capital Receipts( one for one) 170,000 374,000 925,000 504,000     504,000  2,477,000 

Capital Receipts (Vehicles)              -          12,500  62,750 

      

11,000        20,750  107,000 
Capital Reserves  100,000             -                -                -                -    100,000 
Earmarked Reserves  64,450             -                -                -                -    64,450 

Borrowing 1,743,510 4,000,500 
 

3,043,150              -                -    8,787,160 
Total   Revised Financing  2,701,210 8,399,090 6,392,670 3,259,990  2,011,860  22,764,820 

 

 
3.5. In addition, the Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme is set as follows: 

 
  2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 Total 

  £ £ £ £ £ £ 

Asset Management works 3,577,090 5,507,170 4,582,770 3,718,210 4,360,090 21,745,330 

Repairs Team Capital works 204,840 295,000 295,000 295,000 295,000 1,384,840 

Asset Purchases 90,000 289,500 420,000 - - 799,500 

Commissioning Costs 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 500,000 

ICT Strategy - 100,000 100,000 - - 200,000 

Total Programme 3,971,930 6,291,670 5,497,770 4,113,210 4,755,090 24,629,670 

       

Major Repairs Reserve 2,099,030 2,099,030 2,099,030 2,099,030 2,099,030 10,495,150 

HRA Contribution 1,872,900 4,192,640 3,398,740 2,014,180 2,656,060 14,134,520 

Total Financing 3,971,930 6,291,670 5,497,770 4,113,210 4,755,090 24,629,670 

             

 
3.6. The updated MTFP shows a forecast cumulative deficit position of £1.082 million 

over four years, which represented the required use of reserves to balance the 4 

year plan, as shown below: 
 

Reserve  2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

  (Budget)         

  £ £ £ £ £ 

Contingency Reserve 138,290 (901,880) (467,110) (23,370) 310,290 

 

 

Page 16



 

3.7. The forecast general fund reserves position over the life of the current approved 
MTFP is estimated to be:- 

 

Contingency Reserve  2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

  (Budget)         

  £ £ £ £ £ 

As at February 2021:     
      

    
Balance at year-end 3,819,810 2,917,930 2,450,820 2,427,450 2,737,740 

            

Minimum requirement (s7.2) 1,332,000 1,540,000 1,540,000 1,540,000 1,540,000 

            

Headroom 2,487,810 1,377,930 910,820 887,450 1,197,740 

            

 
3.8. The table below summarises the projected overall HRA reserves position for the 

duration of this MTFP. HRA balance is projected to significantly exceed its £1 
million contingency minimum over the next four years.  
 

  2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

  £ £ £ £ £ 

HRA Reserves Brought Forward 16,464,054 17,027,032 15,156,802 14,321,172 15,095,512 

Surplus/(Loss) for the year*  562,978 (1,870,230) (835,630) 774,340 590,930 

Total HRA Reserves carried forward 17,027,032 15,156,802 14,321,172 15,095,512 15,686,442 

 

4. Impact of Coronavirus Pandemic & 2020/21 Outturn Position 
 

4.1. The Coronavirus pandemic has had, and is likely to continue having, an adverse 

impact on the Council’s financial position.  The immediate financial impact arose 
from additional expenditure in dealing with the crisis as well as lost income and 
delays in delivering savings targets. The longer-term financial impacts on 

corporate plan objectives are difficult to forecast. Hence the need to maintain 
adequate financial contingency levels.  

 
4.2. The 2020/21 outturn position was positive for the Council. As well as add 

£100,000 to the  earmarked reserve to fund future costs of the Covid-19 recovery 

programme, the Council has added £950,000 to the general Contingency reserve. 
This places the Council in a much better position to respond to increased levels of 

risk.  
 
4.3. The 2021/22 financial position will be monitored through the remainder of the year 

taking into account the actual recovery of income levels and services and any 
further updates on Government funding. 

 
5. Capital Programme & Revenue Consequences  

5.1. The 2020/21 outturn position on General Fund capital spend was slightly over the  

revised budget, primarily because of more pre-construction expenditure being 

Page 17



incurred against the project in 2020/21 than originally anticipated, so the balance 

of the remaining budget has been reprofiled accordingly. The Capital Programme 
presented to Members in February 2021 will be  reviewed, re-profiled and updated 
as part of 2022/23 budget setting considerations, particularly to where projects 

have been delayed due to the lockdown periods, social distancing measures and 
contractor availability. In addition, the Council will develop an Asset Management 

Strategy to ensure the future delivery of efficient asset management.  This work 
will be progressed once condition surveys have been undertaken and the updated 
30 year costs of maintaining the general fund asset stock are known.  

  
5.2. The capital programme can be funded from a number of options which include 

external grants and contributions from third parties comprising of Government and 
lottery funding; capital receipts from asset sales as part of the asset management 
plan; earmarked revenue reserves and borrowing. As noted in the Table at para 

3.4, estimated capital receipts of £4.466m are assumed (over the period 2020/21 
to 2024/25), which is a challenging target requiring decisions to be made on land 

use and asset sales. The Council’s current estimated borrowing requirement over 
the 4 years is shown below and there are no material changes to this in the 
refresh of the MTFP to date (assuming that capital receipts will be delivered):- 

 
 

 
 
   

 
5.3. In addition, there are other major capital projects in the process of being designed 

(for example, the Future High Street Fund project) and some emerging national 
policy issues that may have financial impacts locally, such as the Department for 
Environment, Food & Rural Affairs (DEFRA) consultation on consistency in 

household and business recycling in England. In the case of any major capital 
project, the default presumption is that schemes will be self-financing, and any 

financial implications will be identified in decision-making reports to the Executive 
that will then feed into the MTFP. In the case of any national changes to service 
policy, the default presumption is that central Government will fund the costs of 

any changes imposed nationally. Again, detailed reports to the Executive will 
identify if this assumption is incorrect, with any financial implications reflected in an 

updated MTFP.  
 
5.4. The Council incurred HRA capital expenditure of £3,731,138 during the year 

against a revised budget of £3,971,930; representing an under spend of £240,792. 
However, there were carry forward requests of £263,000 on schemes.  This is 

reflected in the reduced funding direct from the HRA and associated capital 
reserves, but with a requirement for the use of additional reserves in 2021/22 to 
accommodate the requested carry forwards. There were no other material impacts 

on the longer term HRA capital programme. 
 

5.5. An updated and sustainable 30 year HRA Business Plan was presented alongside 
the MTFP in February 2019.  It highlighted several key issues and challenges 
such as the impact of the welfare reform, understanding tenant priorities, 

considering the outcomes of estate regeneration reviews and the development of 
new stock. All the savings in the HRA Financial Improvement Plan have been 

General Fund Borrowing 
Requirement 

 

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

 £ £ £ £ 
Total 4,000,500 3,043,150 0 0 
     

Page 18



delivered. The major assumptions underpinning the HRA business plan will be 

reviewed prior to rent setting in February 2022.   
 

6. Inflationary Pressures and Investments 
   

6.1. Inflation forecasts are made reflecting the composition of the Council’s 
expenditure, resulting in an inflation rate specific to the Council. This includes the 
impact on staff pay, supplies and services, premises related costs and transport. 

The costs to the Council arising from inflation are forecast in the current MTFP as 
follows: 

 
  

          

Inflationary Changes 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

          

  £ £ £ £ 

Employee Costs 127,140 111,240 111,910 112,900 

Premises Costs 91,180 101,580 62,670 63,570 

Transport 3,220 5,100 5,160 5,160 

Supplies and Services 143,110 142,940 144,620 144,380 

In-Year Inflation Pressure 364,650 360,860 324,360 326,010 

          

General Fund 237,510 222,180 224,140 224,730 

Housing Revenue Account 127,140 138,680 100,220 101,280 

 
 

 

When the MTFP was set (in February 2021) HM Treasury were invoking a public 
sector pay freeze and inflation was depressed by the pandemic. At the time of this 

refresh (August 2021), the Retail Price Index (RPI) was 2.7% and Consumer Price 
Index (CPI) was 2.5%, with the Bank of England forecasting that inflation may hit 

4% by the end of the calendar year. In addition, a national 1.5% pay increase offer 
has been rejected by the Unions, so will need revisiting. It is unclear whether 
current inflation rates are a blip created by a temporary uptick in demand as 

lockdown eases, or whether rising prices reflect a systemic shift in the economy. 
However, it does look as if the current MTFP forecasts (pay (1%); and an amalgam 

of premises (1.25%), transport (1%) and supplies (1.5%) price increases will need 
reviewing prior to the budget being set, with the likelihood that budgetary provision 
for inflation will need to increase. In addition, it is currently unclear what the longer 

term structural economic impacts of Covid-19 and Brexit may be, so this will need 
ongoing monitoring. 

 
6.2. The expectation is that interest rates will continue at current low levels throughout 

the period of the MTFP, with only a small potential increase in the 4th year. The 

Council’s advisors - Link – forecast average investment income earnings of near 
0% return. 

 
6.3. The PWLB consultation was released at the end of November 2020 and as was 

widely anticipated, rates were reduced by 1%. This has not directly impacted the 

forecast of borrowing interest rates, but it does provide more options for the Council 
to borrow,  particular for longer periods. However, there are no material changes to 

existing forecasts and the budget remains as follows:  
 

Page 19



 

 
 

7. Budgetary Demand & Growth  

 
7.1. The Medium Term Financial Plan presented to Council in February 2021 included 

changes in budgetary demand for a number of factors, the most noticeable of 
which were the following:  

 

 Leisure centres – one year support of £754,000 has been included with an 
assumption that this will be in part offset by further Government grant aid of 

£160,000; giving a net provision of £594,000 in the Plan. 

 Glossop Halls – Loss of rental income during the renovation project are 

included in the Plan on the assumption that the work will be completed by 
2023/24. 

 Waste Collection - Costs are included arising  out of the closure of 

Melandra depot and  the increase in tonnages collected.  
 

 Early forecasts (for Quarter 1) indicate that this additional budget capacity is 
sufficient. In addition, other areas identified in the MTFP where there may be a  

requirement to include upfront increased budget demand have been covered by 
the creation of new (or increased) reserves to cover climate change related 
projects and Organisational Development.  So, the budgetary demands identified 

in February 2021 remain valid.  
 

7.2. It is assumed, considering the financial pressures faced by the Council, that any 
local issues that necessitate budget growth will be financed by internal spending 
reductions elsewhere. Occasionally, it is necessary to include budget growth to 

meet spending commitments, but there is no indication that any such items are 
required in this refresh of the MTFP. 

 
7.3. The MTFP assumes that income losses suffered in 2020/21 arising out of the 

Covid19 outbreak will be substantially recovered by the end of 2021/22. Early 

indicators from Quarter 1 monitoring indicate that this assumption remains sound.   
 

7.4. The Medium Term Financial Plan would normally project that the Council will 
increase fees and charges (and other income) broadly in line with inflation, 
acknowledging that certain income streams may not increase each year and 

others are fixed or subject to periodic review. However, the assumed annual 
increase in base income has been suspended for years 1 and 2 of the plan, whilst 

fees and charges income levels recover from the Covid19 shock 
 

Treasury Budgets – Borrowing 
costs and investment Income 

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

General Fund £ £ £ £ 

Borrowing Costs 1,824,340 1,919,640 1,967,700 1,951,700 

Investment Income (40,290) (39,410) (40,040) (63,280) 

HRA     
Borrowing Costs 1,700,040 1,581,150 1,522,920 1,532,550 

Investment Income (6,980) (5,910) (6,570) (12,640) 

     

Page 20



7.5. Additional revenue arising out of increased fees and charges of £115,000 

(including inflationary increases) has been reprofiled into 2023/24. This is at risk if 
new tariffs (or other sources of income) are not introduced.  

 

7.6. The current HRA Plan projects a 2.5% in rent in the years 2022/23 to 2024/25. 

This is based on the ability of Authorities to increase rents from 2020/21 by CPI 

+1%. It also assumes that ‘Other Charges’, including garages and service 

charges, will increase in 2021/22 – 2024/25.  As noted in Section 6, CPI is 

currently rising at a greater rate. Therefore, the current forecasts (as outlined in 

the table below) may need reviewing later in the financial year: 

Rental Income 
2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

 £ £ £ £ 
Revenue from Rental Income and Other Charges (112,200) (285,420) (290,640) (591,220)** 

     
** 53 week rent year 

 
8. Local Taxes – Council Tax, Business Rates & New Homes Bonus 

   
Council Tax 

8.1. The Council has the capacity to vary Council Tax levels, following the abolition of 
capping.  However, the Council’s ability to increase Council Tax by more than a 
certain percentage is subject to referendum. For 2021/22, this percentage was 2%, 

but alternatively, lower tier Authorities had the option to increase the Band D 
equivalent by a set £5 or 2% – whichever was higher. 

 
8.2. The February 2021iteration of the MTFP assumed a 1.9% increase from 2022/23 

onwards. In addition, provision was included to reflect anticipated growth in Council 

Tax base over the next 4 years. Having seen the growth in tax base slow during the 
pandemic as house-building and employment levels were affected; it is assumed that 

this will recover in 2022/23, boosted by an upturn in the economy. Current 
assumptions are as follows:  

 

Increased Council Tax Income 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

  £ £ £ £ 

Revenue from increased Council Tax (154,850) (114,980) (118,370) (121,780) 

Revenue from Tax Base growth 13,230 (87,440) (68,700) (70,080) 

          

Total (141,620) (202,420) (187,070) (191,860) 

          

 

8.3. There has been no further update from Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 

Government (MHCLG) regarding the principles by which a Council Tax increase for 
2022/23 will be regarded as “excessive” and require a referendum.  Therefore, it is 
sensible at this point in time to assume 1.9% increases, purely for planning purposes 

within the MTFP.  
  

Business Rates 
 

8.4. Under the 50% Business Rates Retention system, the Authority retains 40% of 
Business Rates less a tariff that is payable into a pool of Derbyshire Authorities. This 

Page 21



amount is then compared to a Funding Baseline with any amount in excess of this 

Baseline subject to levy, or conversely if the amount of retained Business Rates is 
below this Baseline, the loss is capped by a safety net payment. The MTFP does not 
anticipate the Council falling below the Baseline. 

 
8.5. The MTFP anticipates that Business Rates retention will be above the baseline. Net 

income is somewhat suppressed due to the award of reliefs including increased small 
business rate relief, caps on inflation to the multiplier, extended rural relief, and the 
increase in the provision for RV reductions on successful appeals. To compensate 

for the loss of business rates, the Government distributes grants (known as  Section 
31 grants) to Councils. 

 
8.6. As part of the Derbyshire Pool, the levy or the safety net payment is made to or from 

the Pool instead of Central Government. If the Council was not in the Staffordshire 

Pool it would have to pay 50p in the £1 to the Government as a levy, effectively 
limiting the income the Council can gain from business rates growth. However, as 

part of the Pool, the Council retains 40% of this levy plus 20% or £215,000, 
whichever is the larger; meaning that for every £1 achieved above the baseline at 
least 60% is retained by the Council with the remainder going to the Pool to be 

distributed within Staffordshire. The benefit to the Council of being part of the Pool 
arrangement is estimated to be £430,350 in 2021/22. 

 
8.7. As a result of Covid-19 and the impact recession and social distancing measures are 

having on businesses, there is a risk that the Council may see a reduction in the 

business tax base and therefore business rates retention. A reduction of 0.5% has 
been included in this version of the MTFP. There is also a risk associated with non-

payment, although collection rates for 2020/21 generally held up. 98.1% of Business 
Rates was collected by 31 March 2021, compared with 98.4% for the same period 
last year. Bad debt provision of 1% has been set for 2021/22; with 0.8% in 2022/23; 

returning to the pre-Covid level of 0.6% in 2023/24 and 2024/25. 
 

New Homes Bonus 

8.8. The Government consulted on a replacement for the New Homes Bonus scheme 
earlier this year. Any new housing incentive scheme will reflect a more targeted 

approach that rewards local government where they are ‘ambitious’ in delivering 
housing growth. At this stage, there is no further detail on what form the new scheme 

will take. In the absence of any further information, this refresh of the MTFP assumes 
that the Council will continue to receive funding at a base level of £450,000 per 
annum. However, this does remain a major risk to the viability of the Plan beyond 

2021/22. 
 

9. Efficiency & Rationalisation Programme  
 

General Fund  

9.1. The current Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy was approved by Members in 
February 2017, which identified a programme of £2.1 million in savings to be made 

over the period 2017/18 – 2020/21. Subsequently, a review was undertaken in 
February 2019 to assess the timing and estimated value of future savings based on 
the current programme.  The Covid-19 recovery phase and impact on the Council’s 

financial position has continued into 2021/22, but there is only a relatively modest 
£95,000 target outstanding, and the Council has an earmarked reserve to support 

any reprofiling requirement. There will be greater certainty on achievement of the 

Page 22



savings target following Quarter 2 monitoring. No assumptions in respect of any ‘new’ 

efficiency programme have been incorporated into this refresh of the plan. 
 

HRA Efficiency Programme 

9.2. A HRA Financial Improvement Plan was approved as part of the MTFP in February 

2017 which identified £1.2m in savings from several sources to be achieved over the 

period 2017/18 – 2020/21.  Progress against the Improvement Plan has been 

positive and all the £1.2m savings have now been achieved. 

10. Use and Level of  Reserves 
 

10.1. The Medium Term Financial Plan is underpinned by several assumptions that have 
been made explicit in this report. New information, when it emerges, may require the 
Council to alter its assumptions with a consequential effect on the Council’s financial 

position. Members receive quarterly updates on performance against the budget, 
indicating whether such assumptions remain robust.   

 

10.2. The Council carries reserves as a contingency for situations where risks cannot be 

fully mitigated. In February 2021 the minimum general reserve contingency balance 
was set at £1.540m with an anticipation at 1st April 2021 it would hold a contingency 

reserve of £3.8m. At outturn the contingency was at £4.1m, indicating a relatively 
healthy level of reserves, albeit acknowledging higher levels of financial risk too.   

 

10.3. In  addition, the HRA budget for 2020/21 was originally set to produce a deficit of 

£0.8m, to be funded from reserves, but produced a surplus of £1.3m to be added to 
reserves, which again leaves the overall level of HRA reserves in a relatively strong 

position (see para 3.8 above).     
 
10.4. The early identification and management of risks is critical to the Budget and Medium 

Term Financial Planning process. Risks are assessed, mitigated and actively 
managed to ensure that the Council delivers its services effectively within the funding 

at its disposal. The table below highlights specific financial risks that are embedded 
within this Medium Term Financial Plan:  

 

Revenue Risks Capital Risks 
 

 Inflationary assumptions 

 Interest rates 

 Housing benefits 

 Fees and charges 

 Universal Credit 

 Business Rates  

 Council Tax collection 

 Housing Rent levels (HRA 

affordability) 

 Government grants 

 Financial benefits from partnerships 
/ shared services 

 Pension costs 

 Contract Management  

 Interest rates  

 External funding 

 Capital receipts 

 Capacity to deliver capital 

programme 

 Project overspends 

 Project overruns 

 External factors (e.g. planning 

objections, judicial reviews etc. 
leading to project delay) 

 Housing finance  

 Weather  

 Brexit implications 

 

Page 23



 Brexit implications 

 

10.5. In addition, there are several financial risks within the MTFP related to local recovery 
post Covid-19 that need to be regularly reviewed and considered:- 

 

o The period of recovery is prolonged which has further cost pressure 
consequences for the Council – especially regarding the operation of leisure 

centres 
o Fees and Charges income levels do not return to pre-Covid levels as 

forecast 

o The economy is deflated post-recovery leading to ongoing economic 
problems in town centres and the broader economy, as well as community 

safety issues, which lead to increased cost pressures 
o Increased demand on certain services e.g. Benefits and economic support. 
o Further national lockdowns / tiered systems imposed which leads to further 

pressures on businesses and households and additional costs to the Council 
in providing support 

 
11. Summary of Financial Risks and Next Steps 

11.1. A summary of all the considerations above is given in the annex to this report, with 

each factor RAG (Red, Amber, Green) rated, using the following criteria:  
  

 

Red 
Either the financial position has materially shifted from that in the MTFP set in 
February 2021 in a negative way (i.e. costs have increased and / or income has 
reduced); or there are external factors beyond the influence of the Council, which 
could detrimentally impact on the financial position of the Council.  

Amber The financial position has shifted from that in the MTFP set in February 2021 in a 
negative way (i.e. costs have increased and / or income has reduced), but there are 
mitigating actions available (e.g. short term reserves) or policy decisions available 
to resolve the pressure, but they have not yet been implemented.   

Green The current financial forecast remains as set in the MTFP set in February or has 
improved since that time (i.e. costs have reduced and / or income has grown).  

 
11.2. The overall conclusion is that the MTFP remains fundamentally robust and the 

following actions will need to be taken prior to it being agreed alongside the 2022/23 
budget in February 2022: 

 Forecasts are rolled forward to include 2025/26 

 Inflation provision is reviewed alongside economic data to establish whether 
structural inflation is higher than previously forecast 

 Any service budget demands are built in 

 The outcomes of any Government reviews (on council tax, business rates and 

new homes bonus) are considered 

 Any changes to the capital programme (including any identified capital / 

revenue implications of major projects) are reflected 

 Decisions on any fees and charges and the deliverability of capital receipts are 

also reflected  
 

 

 
 

 
 

Page 24



Ann ex - September 2021 Review of High Peak MTFP 

Area RAG Comment 

Revenue Consequences of 

Capital Spend  

 The outturn position on capital spend was in line with the 

revised budget, so do not expect much variation from 
existing MTFP plans. However, the capital programme is 
more dependent on £4.4m of receipts being realised 

(over the period to 2024/25), which will require decisions 
on planning / sales etc 

Return on Investments  There is unlikely to be any change to interest rates in the 
short term, but the MTFP already reflects this.  

Inflation Pressures   MTFP is built on the following Inflation assumptions: pay 

(1%); and amalgam of premises (1.25%), transport (1%) 
and supplies (1.5%).These assumptions were set when 
HM Treasury were invoking a public sector pay freeze 

and inflation was depressed by the pandemic. The pay 
estimate (for 2021/22) now looks low – a  national 1.5% 
pay increase offer has been rejected by the Unions, so 

will need revisiting. 

Increased / (Reduced) Budget 
Demand  

 Generally, the additional allocations incorporated into the 
2021/22 budget seem to be adequate (as at interim 
Quarter 1 monitoring), including the level of leisure 

contractor support (£594k) and the expectation of car 
park income returning to pre Covid levels by the end of 
the year. There is the potential for further Facilities 

Management costs, but only for this financial year, which 
could be met from one-off Covid resources. 

Budget Growth   There is nothing to suggest that the current principle that 
any local issues that necessitate budget growth are  

financed by internal spending reductions elsewhere does 
not still hold. Specific issues previously identified in the 
MTFP (around climate change related projects and 

Organisational Strategy) have been covered by additional 
earmarked reserves, as part of the 2020/21 outturn.   

Council Tax Income   There has been no indication from MHCLG regarding the 
level at which a referendum is required to raise council 

tax (known colloquially as the “capping guide”) but given 
forecast inflation levels the current MTFP assumption of 
1.9% remains valid.  

Collection Fund   Collection rates for both Business Rates (98.1%) and 

Council Tax (97.8%) have remained high, so MTFP 
projections remain fundamentally sound. The removal of 
furlough funding may have a negative impact on Council 

Tax recovery but will need reviewing later in the year.  

Government Funding Reviews   The Government’s position on a replacement for New 
Homes Bonus, the future or expansion of Business Rates 
Retention and the Fair Funding review all remain 

unknown. The outcomes from these reviews pose the 
biggest risks to the Authority. However, the likelihood is 
no implementation of any changes for a further year.  

Use of and Levels of Reserves  Following the 2020/21 outturn, another £0.950m has 

been added to the general contingency, which is 0.3m 
better than anticipated in the February 2021 MTFP. 

Fees and Charges   Inflationary increases are built into the MTFP, plus £115k 
in 2023/24 and £40k in 2024/25, for which decisions will 

need to be made. 

Efficiency & Rationalisation 
Plan  

 No ongoing savings requirement from 2022/23, and just  
£95k is required in 2021/22.  

 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Report to the Corporate Select Committee 
 

27th September 2021 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
Appendices Attached: 

Appendix A – Vision Derbyshire - High Level Plan  
Appendix B – Proposed Governance Arrangements for Vision Derbyshire  

Appendix C – Flow Charts  
 
 

1. Reason for the Report  

 

1.1 The purpose of the report is to:  
 

 Provide an update on work taking place with Derbyshire Councils on 

Vision Derbyshire and the emergence of the opportunities presented 
through a County Deal; 

 Seek approval for the Council’s involvement in Phase 4 development and 
implementation; and  

 Seek to confirm the Council’s involvement in the establishment of a Joint 
Committee of local authorities within Derbyshire, the Vision Derbyshire 
Committee, to progress a collaborative working model which seeks to 

improve outcomes for people and place through closer working between 
those authorities.  

 
 
2. Recommendations 

 
2.1 It is recommended that the Corporate Select Committee support the following 

recommendations to the Executive: 
 

 Note progress on the development of the Vision Derbyshire approach and 

recent Phase 3 developments and achievements.  

 Consider and note key actions currently being undertaken during Vision 

Derbyshire Phase 3a to develop an ambitious programme of work in 
advance of Phase 4. 

 Consider and approve Vision Derbyshire Phase 4 proposals for the 
forthcoming period as set out in the report.  

TITLE: Vision Derbyshire 
 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR Cllr Anthony McKeown – Leader 

  
CONTACT OFFICERS: Andrew Stokes – Chief Executive 
   

WARDS INVOLVED:  Non-Specific 

Page 27

Agenda Item 8



 Approve the Council’s active participation in Vision Derbyshire Phase 4 
and the associated costs of taking forward the programme of work, the 

maximum cost of which currently stands at £52,350 per annum.  

 Approve proposals for the establishment of the Vision Derbyshire Joint 

Committee and delegates functions to the Joint Committee as set out in 
the Functions and Responsibilities document in Appendix B.  

 Approve the Terms of Reference, including the Introduction and Context, 
Functions and Responsibilities, Procedural Rules and Information 
Procedure Rules for the Vision Derbyshire Joint Committee as set out at 

Appendix B and the position detailed in those documents regarding 
scrutiny and co-option. 

 Appoint the Leader, Cllr Anthony McKeown, as the Council’s 
representative on the Vision Derbyshire Joint Committee and the Deputy 
Leader, Cllr Damien Greenhalgh, as substitute.  

 Agree to delegate authority to the Leader to agree by executive member 
decision which authority will act as the host authority for the Joint 

Committee.  

 Note that as the functions of the Committee are executive functions, HPBC 

will not have the opportunity to co-opt additional members onto the 
Committee and the ability to co-opt is restricted within the Terms of 
Reference.  

 Note that, in accordance with section 9F of the Local Government Act 
2000, constituent authorities who operate executive arrangements will 

need to make formal scrutiny arrangements to review or scrutinise 
decisions made in connection with the exercise of the functions of the 

Vision Derbyshire Joint Committee, and that the Council’s existing scrutiny 
arrangements through its select committees will apply.  

 

 
3. Executive Summary 

 
3.1 The Council has been working with the other local authorities in Derbyshire on 

a new collective and ambitious vision and model of local government 

collaboration.  Phase 1 of the approach, which commenced in July 2019, 
involved the Councils working together to develop a shared set of priorities 
and to agree to strategically collaborate on: 

 

 Improvement of outcomes for people and places;  

 Speak with one voice as a county;  

 Provide a viable alternative to unitarisation; and to  

 Co-ordinate resources better and more sustainably.  
 

3.2 Phase 2 of the approach resulted in the development of Vision Derbyshire, an 
approach to non-structural reform and a case for change and proposition to 
central government focused around four key ambitions as follows:  

 
 Seize innovation - pioneering skills and technologies for a sustainable 

future economy  

Page 28



 Establish relentless ambition - creating opportunities for everyone in 

Derbyshire and making these visible:  

 Build proactive communities - harnessing the energy in Derbyshire’s 

communities and empowering people to make change:  

 Live and work sustainably - committing to a zero-carbon footprint in our 

tourism, wider economy and ways of working  

 
3.3 In November 2020, a report to the Corporate Select Committee and the 

Executive, provided an update on Vision Derbyshire in the context of the 

awaited Devolution and Local Recovery White Paper. Following consideration 
of this report, the Executive agreed to adopt Vision Derbyshire as the 

Council’s preferred option of local government reform in Derbyshire subject to 
further reports on confirmed proposals. 

 

3.4 Consequently the Council has continued to participate in Phase 3 of the 
development of Vision Derbyshire. This has involved working to further 

develop the Vision Derbyshire approach. The Leaders and Chief Executives 
of eight Derbyshire Councils (all Derbyshire Councils excluding Derby City 
Council and South Derbyshire District Council), agreed to progress and 

commence implementation of Vision Derbyshire proposals, translating the 
case for change and proposition to central government into a practical 

programme of work. 
 
3.5 Significant progress being made in a relatively short period of time and has 

been successful in demonstrating the true potential of the approach. During 
Phase 3, Leaders and Chief Executives supported by Lead Officers from 

across the range of participating Councils have been given responsibility for 
identified thematic programmes of work. The outline of the themes and 
responsibilities for delivery are detailed in Appendix A.  

 
3.6 Engagement sessions specifically aimed at broadening wider Elected Member 

involvement took place between January and March 2021.  Rapid progress 
has also been made on governance with Lead Officers, from a number of 
participating Councils, involved in the Governance Working Group designing 

and developing proposals for new formal governance arrangements through a 
new Vision Derbyshire Joint Committee which are presented in this report for 

consideration and endorsement. 
 
3.7 In March 2021, proposals to take forward the approach were approved and 

Phase 3a, which commenced in April 2021, is now underway. Phase 3a seeks 
to take advantage of the significant progress made during Phase 3 putting in 

place plans and making the necessary preparations for the delivery of a wider, 
ambitious programme of work as part of Phase 4 proposals. It is anticipated 
that all necessary plans and activity will be completed in readiness for the 

launch of Phase 4 at the end of September 2021. 
 

3.8 A key principle of the approach is to put in place a model to position 
Derbyshire at the forefront of any national developments including securing a 
potential devolution deal. The national landscape has recently shifted, with a 

move away from Devolution and Local Recovery to Levelling Up. Recent 

Page 29



announcements by the Prime Minister and the appointment of a Secretary of 
State for Levelling Up have signalled a move towards the creation of County 

Deals and this presents significant opportunities for Derbyshire Councils 
through Vision Derbyshire to present a credible model to Government.  

 
3.9 Given the anticipated publication of the forthcoming Levelling-Up White 

Paper, expected late in the Autumn, many county councils including 

Derbyshire are actively considering their routes to securing a County Deal. 
Government are currently in discussions with a number of authorities across 

the country and it is expected that the Government will invite a small number 
of these to be pilot areas. Derbyshire County Council recently submitted a 
formal expression of interest requesting that Derbyshire be considered as a 

potential County Deal pilot area.  
 

3.10 Phase 4 of the Programme will seek to:  
 

 Confirm detailed implementation proposals developed during Phase 3a 

and commence delivery of agreed short and medium-term programmes of 
activity focused on achieving the four Vision Derbyshire strategic 

ambitions  

 Establish a new joint Vision Derbyshire programme team, tasked with 

accelerating and supporting the implementation of delivery plans and 
proposals  

 Build on the success of Phase 3, further extending and deepening the 

engagement and involvement of elected members, senior managers and 
partner organisations through agreed implementation and delivery 

proposals  

 Establish the new Vision Derbyshire Joint Committee embedding new 
decision-making processes across participating councils  

 Build a broader longer-term delivery programme to meet agreed Vision 
Derbyshire ambitions.  

 
3.11 Detailed delivery programmes for each of the four thematic ambitions are 

currently in development and will be in place by September 2021. Key 
priorities for each of the ambitions which are set out below: 

 
Ambition  Priorities  

Seize Innovation  Business Entrepreneur Scheme 

Smart Towns Programme  
Achieve Relentless Ambition  Careers  

Skills and Employment Research 

Festival of Business 
Social Mobility 

Communities  Homelessness 

Independent Living  
Domestic Abuse 

Live and Work Sustainably  Climate Change 
Shared Planning Policies 

 
 

Page 30



3.12 The creation of new formal governance arrangements is proposed in order to 
ensure that Derbyshire Councils can work effectively, maximise opportunities 

for collaboration and provide a platform to enable agile and flexible formal 
joint decision making. The articles, functions and procedure rules for the 

proposed Vision Derbyshire Joint Committee are attached at Appendix B, for 
consideration and approval by the Council. The articles set out the main aims 
of the Vision Derbyshire Joint Committee, which will:  

 

 Provide collective leadership for Derbyshire  

 Progress shared ambitions for the area  

 Work together to tackle the issues and challenges outlined in the case for 

change; and  

 Enable agile, timely and effective decision making.  
 

3.13 The Joint Committee, on behalf of the participating authorities, will be 
responsible for improving the delivery of functions already within the remit of 

local authorities through statute or through specific collaborative work to 
improve the economic, environmental or social wellbeing of the areas within 
Derbyshire from the following broad definitions:  

 

 Shared service arrangements  

 Incorporating existing partnership arrangements within the Vision 
Derbyshire model  

 Areas for collaborative system changes across authorities  

 Specific thematic projects and priorities  

 
3.14 As Phase 4 progresses from September 2021, it is envisaged that the Joint 

Committee will take on new areas of work and responsibility as these emerge 

and develop. This will be subject to approval by the Council to delegate those 
additional functions to the Joint Committee.  

 
3.15 All Derbyshire Councils are now being asked whether they wish to progress 

their involvement in Vision Derbyshire moving forward. It is important to note 

that with the prospect of Vision Derbyshire and the Joint Committee providing 
the foundations and structure for a County Deal, those councils not wishing to 

progress their involvement in Vision Derbyshire at this time will still be able to 
make a decision to join in the future.  

 

3.16 The Council is now asked to consider proposals as set out in the report in 
relation to the authority’s future involvement in Vision Derbyshire and the 

proposed Vision Derbyshire Joint Committee. Given the role the Council has 
played in developing the Vision Derbyshire approach, it is recommended that 
the authority delegate functions to the Joint Committee as set out in report to 

enable it to be formed. As the functions are executive functions, members 
appointed to the Vision Derbyshire Committee should be members of the 

Executive. 
 

3.17 Proposals to adequately resource Phase 4 ambitions and plans, initially for a 

twelve-month period, have been developed and involve the creation of a 

Page 31



Programme Team and resource. The Council is required to contribute towards 
the cost of this. 

 
 
4.       How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 The Vision Derbyshire approach will potentially have a significant impact on 

the achievement of a number of the Council’s corporate priorities 
 

 
5.       Options and Analysis 
 

5.1 Alternative Option 1 Do Nothing – The Council could continue with current 
arrangements for Vision Derbyshire with existing informal governance 

arrangements and resources. However, this option is not sustainable in the 
short and medium term because resources and capacity to deliver identified 
programmes of work are not sufficient to progress the approach. A new joint 

team and formal governance arrangements provide an opportunity to present 
a different and new model of collaboration as a viable alternative to local 

government reform and as such this would not deliver the ambitions of the 
Council to deliver local government reform. (Not recommended) 

 

5.2 Alternative Option 2 – The Council could cease its involvement in Vision 
Derbyshire and abandon ambitions to develop a new collaborative model for 

Derbyshire. The Council instead could continue to pursue opportunities to 
deliver improved outcomes through traditional forms of collaboration and 
partnership. However, this approach has known limitations, does not address 

the challenges facing local government in respect of reduced financial 
resources and will not deliver the full range of benefits as set out in the report. 

It does not provide a viable alternative to local government reorganisation and 
limits Derbyshire’s ability to speak with one voice. Ultimately this could 
prevent Derbyshire from maximising resources into Derbyshire that may 

become available through devolution and the levelling up agenda. (Not 
Recommended) 

 
5.3 Alternative Option 3 – The Council could cease its involvement in Vision 

Derbyshire and pursue an alternative approach to local government reform 

through local government reorganisation. However, this is not currently the 
Council’s preferred option and there is currently no framework in place to 

enable Councils in the country to pursue this approach at the current moment 
in time (Not recommended) 

 

 
6.  Implications 

 
6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 

None 

 
6.2 Workforce 

Following agreement of proposals, Vision Derbyshire Councils will need to 

Page 32



identify and confirm a host organisation to support the joint programme 
team. It is yet to be determined which Council will host the seven 

Programme Team posts however, recruitment to the posts would be in line 
with the grading criteria of the host council and their policies and 

procedures.  
 
It is proposed that all posts will be created on a fixed term basis, and as 

such, will be subject to the host council’s redundancy and redeployment 
policies and procedures. Where employees are on fixed term contracts, 

employment law determines that they may be entitled to claim both unfair 
dismissal and/or redundancy payment at the termination of their contract.  
 

All partners will be asked to confirm their willingness to recognise an 
obligation to the postholders, through offering redeployment opportunities as 

appropriate, should this become necessary.  
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 

An Equality Impact Assessment is not needed as the report relates to an 
administrative decision rather than an issue of policy. 

 
6.4 Financial Considerations 

The total cost of taking forward Vision Derbyshire proposals is £436,248. A 

breakdown of costings is set out in the report at Section  
 

The total cost to the Council in supporting current proposals as set out in the 
report is £52,350, which can be met from Efficiency and Rationalisation 
Earmarked Reserve. It is anticipated that this cost will be offset by savings 

realised from the enhanced  two-tier working implemented in Phase 4 of the 
programme. 

 
Future years’ contributions will be considered by the Executive following a 
review of the outcomes from the programme. 

 
The host authority is likely to incur costs relating to the operation of the Joint 

Committee and these will be met from the Programme Budget. The cost of 
ensuring the Council can actively participate in the development and 
implementation of proposals are currently unknown and will therefore be the 

subject of a separate report to the Executive as further detail emerges.  
 

6.5 Legal 
The establishment of joint committee arrangements will need to considered 
and approved at full Council  

 
The constitutional / legal implications are set out in Section 14 of the report   

 
16.6 Climate Change 

Collaboration on climate change has been identified as one of the key areas 

for potential future focus for Vision Derbyshire  
 

6.7 External Consultation 

Page 33



None at this stage 
 

 
  

Page 34



ANDREW P STOKES 
Chief Executive 

 
 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Location Contact details 

A New Vision for Derbyshire – Non-

Structural Reform Final Report, PWC 
November 2019  
 

Vision Derbyshire Case for Change – 
July 2020  
 

Vision Derbyshire Proposition to 
Central Government – July 2020  

Buxton Town Hall Andrew P Stokes 

Chief Executive 
 

Page 35



7 Introduction and Background 

 

7.1 Over the last two years, Councils across Derbyshire have been working 
towards a new collective and ambitious vision and model of local government 

collaboration, integration and shared leadership, which has looked beyond 
traditional partnerships and focused on achieving the greatest public value for 
local people and communities.  

 
7.2 Phase 1 of the approach which commenced in July 2019, saw all ten Councils 

in Derbyshire – the County Council, Derby City Council and eight district and 
borough councils – working together to develop a shared set of priorities and 
to agree to strategically collaborate on the improvement of outcomes for 

people and places, to speak with one voice as a county, to provide a viable 
alternative to unitarisation and to coordinate resources better and more 

sustainably.  
 
7.3 Phase 2 of the approach resulted in the development of Vision Derbyshire, an 

approach to non-structural reform and a case for change and proposition to 
central government focused around four key ambitions as follows:  

 
 Seize innovation - pioneering skills and technologies for a sustainable 

future economy  

 Establish relentless ambition - creating opportunities for everyone in 

Derbyshire and making these visible:  

 Build proactive communities - harnessing the energy in Derbyshire’s 

communities and empowering people to make change:  

 Live and work sustainably - committing to a zero-carbon footprint in our 

tourism, wider economy and ways of working  
 

7.4 A number of enablers, including: leadership; culture; strategy; technology; 
workforce; customers; and assets, to support and embed collaboration, were 

also identified during the development of Phase 2, alongside estimated 
organisational and wider system benefits that could potentially be achieved if 
the new approach were to be taken forward.  

 
7.5 New formal governance arrangements, to support effective decision making, 

were also identified during this phase as being crucial in taking the approach 
forward, in addition to a number of asks and offers to Government to support 
the realisation of ambitions.  

 
7.6 In November 2020, a report to the Corporate Select Committee and the 

Executive, provided an update on Vision Derbyshire in the context of the 
awaited Devolution and Local Recovery White Paper, with reports at the time 
suggesting that this could pave the way for widespread local government 

reorganisation. Following consideration of this report, the Executive agreed to:  
 

 Note the progress with the work that has taken place with Derbyshire 
Councils on the development of Vision Derbyshire – a new collaborative 

approach to deliver non-structural reform across Derbyshire. 

Page 36



 Note the intended publication of the Government’s Devolution and Local 
Recovery White Paper and the potential implications in relation to local 

government reform. 

 Approve Vision Derbyshire as the Council’s preferred option of local 

government reform in Derbyshire at this current time subject to further 
reports on confirmed proposals. 

 Endorse the District Councils’ Network’s call for proposals in the 
Government’s white paper to back the success of district councils in 
delivery and not distract from the local recovery effort or reduce delivery 

capacity through forcing local government reorganisation; and 

 Ensure that the Corporate Select Committee receive further reports on any 

confirmed proposals from Vision Derbyshire when available. 
 
7.7 Consequently the Council has continued to participate in Phase 3 of the 

development of Vision Derbyshire and the purpose of this report is to:   
 

 Ensure that the Corporate Select Committee is aware of developments 
and progress that has taken place on the development of Vision 

Derbyshire and the activity that is currently taking place to prepare for the 
next phase of the Vision Derbyshire approach;  

 Consider the commitment of financial resources to support the Phase 4 

proposals; and  

 Consider the Council’s involvement and participation in new governance 

arrangements through a Joint Committee  
 

 
8 Vision Derbyshire – Phase 3 

 

8.1 Work has actively been taking place to further develop the Vision Derbyshire 
approach. In October 2020, Leaders and Chief Executives of eight Derbyshire 

Councils (all Derbyshire Councils excluding Derby City Council and South 
Derbyshire District Council), agreed to progress and commence 
implementation of Vision Derbyshire proposals, translating the case for 

change and proposition to central government, developed during Phase 2, 
into a practical programme of work across the following five workstreams: 

 

 Strategic and Tactical Development  

 Building a Team  

 Accelerated Delivery Programme  

 Governance Model  

 Communications and Stakeholder Engagement  
 

8.2 Vision Derbyshire Phase 3 has therefore sought to:  
 

 Maintain the momentum successfully built up during earlier phases, 

extending engagement to a broader range of members, employees and 
partner organisations through agreed implementation and delivery 

proposals; 

Page 37



 Mobilise delivery in order to accelerate the implementation of agreed 
priorities initially focusing on a number of early start areas aligned to the 

four agreed ambitions areas;  

 Develop draft governance proposals for Vision Derbyshire through the 

development of new Joint Committee arrangements; and  

 Build a broader short and medium-term delivery programme to meet 

agreed ambitions.  
 
8.3 Phase 3 has seen significant progress being made in a relatively short period 

of time and has been successful in demonstrating the true potential of the 
approach. During Phase 3, Leaders and Chief Executives supported by Lead 

Officers from across the range of participating Councils have been given 
responsibility for identified thematic programmes of work. This has 
accelerated shared leadership and accountability and developed trust and 

collective buy in to the approach.  
 

8.4 Phase 3 has also seen the design and development of joint programmes of 
work to support identified priorities and this has presented opportunities to 
showcase activity and the benefits of the model in delivering improved 

outcomes for people and place, for example through the development of a 
new county wide Business Entrepreneur Scheme and new Homelessness 

approach.  
 
8.5 Engagement sessions specifically aimed at broadening wider Elected Member 

involvement took place between January and March 2021 and have provided 
a basis for the fostering of even closer working relationships through a clearer 

understanding and involvement in Vision Derbyshire implementation which 
will deliver benefits on the ground.  

 

8.6 Rapid progress has been made on governance with Lead Officers, from a 
number of participating Councils, involved in the Governance Working Group 

designing and developing proposals for new formal governance arrangements 
through a new Vision Derbyshire Joint Committee which are presented in this 
report for consideration and endorsement. 

 
8.7 Work to develop communications and engagement of the approach, which will 

be vital as activity on the ground emerges, has also taken place with an initial 
focus on the development and design of a new Vision Derbyshire brand 
through a partnership with the University of Derby.  

 
8.8 Phase 3 has ultimately put in place the foundations and architecture for future 

phases of the Vision Derbyshire approach and this will put Derbyshire 
Councils in an excellent position to rapidly accelerate future proposals.  

 

 
9 Current Position  

 
9.1 Vision Derbyshire has been driven forward and involved a significant 

investment of time, hard work and goodwill from participating councils and 

Page 38



their leaders, executive officers and lead officers. The future of the approach 
is now at a critical stage of development, given what it potentially at stake.  

 
9.2 At a meeting of Vision Derbyshire Leaders and Chief Executives in March 

2021, proposals to take forward the approach were approved and Phase 3a, 
which commenced in April 2021, is now underway. Phase 3a seeks to take 
advantage of the significant progress made during Phase 3 putting in place 

plans and making the necessary preparations for the delivery of a wider, 
ambitious programme of work as part of Phase 4 proposals. The key aims of 

Phase 3a are to:  
 

 Scope out and develop detailed programme delivery plans for the four 

thematic ambition areas ensuring these are developed and in place in 
advance of Phase 4 implementation;  

 Identify and scope out the key enablers and potential shared services 
which can be further developed through the Vision Derbyshire approach;  

 Secure the buy in to, and involvement of participating councils to new 
formal governance arrangements; 

 Identify and secure resources for the creation of dedicated joint 

programme support;  

 Broaden involvement through additional Elected Member, and a series of 

new Senior Management Team, engagement sessions across 
participating Councils to support the development of programme delivery 

plans; and  

 Re-engage with central government and other key stakeholders to identify 
opportunities to maximise opportunities for Derbyshire to support identified 

ambitions and priorities.  
 

9.3 It is anticipated that all necessary plans and activity will be completed in 
readiness for the launch of Phase 4 at the end of September 2021. 

 

 
10 County Deals and Devolution  

 
10.1 A key principle of the approach is to put in place arrangements and a model to 

position Derbyshire at the forefront of any national developments including 

securing a potential devolution deal and maximising additional resources into 
the county. The national landscape has recently shifted, with a move away 

from Devolution and Local Recovery to Levelling Up. Recent announcements 
by the Prime Minister including the appointment of a Secretary of State for 
Levelling Up have signalled a move towards the creation of County Deals and 

this presents significant opportunities for Derbyshire Councils through Vision 
Derbyshire in this shift, to present a credible model to Government.  

 
10.2 Reduced public sector funding and increasing demand for services driven by 

demographics and long standing social, health and economic pressures mean 

that the Council, like many other authorities across the country, continues to 
face significant challenges in providing the services that local people need 

and want with available resources. The resulting impact of the pandemic on 
the national economy is likely to be significant and the anticipated financial 

Page 39



shock on public finances will place local government under increasing 
pressures to deliver services with increasing demand and reduced resources.  

 
10.3 Based on existing deals, a County Deal for Derbyshire could incorporate 

directly devolved investment in infrastructure, skills, transport and housing. 
Such investment would be of vital importance in enabling the local and 
regional economy to recover from the pandemic for the benefit of local people.  

 
10.4 Given the anticipated publication of the forthcoming Levelling-Up White 

Paper, expected in the Autumn, many county councils are actively considering 
their routes to securing a County Deal. Government are currently in 
discussions with a number of authorities across the country and it is expected 

that the Government will invite a small number of these to be pilot areas. 
Derbyshire County Council recently submitted a formal expression of interest 

requesting that Derbyshire be considered as a potential County Deal pilot 
area.  

 

10.5 Whilst this is an emergent process, the Council understands that those 
authorities who can submit the clearest, most innovative and readily 

deliverable plans for non-structural reform in their areas, with proposals for 
strong governance alongside, are most likely to be successful. Therefore, the 
need to mobilise as a group of Vision Derbyshire Councils in this process will 

be critical in ensuring that vital resources and funding are drawn into the 
county to meet identified ambitions. 

 
10.6 Phase 4 proposals set out in the report will ensure that the necessary 

governance and structures to deliver at pace are in place to take advantage of 

opportunities as these arise in advance of the White Paper being published 
and before any new proposals and funding streams for future Levelling Up 

activity is announced.  
 
 

11 Phase 4 Vision Derbyshire Proposals  

 

11.1 Phase 4 Vision Derbyshire proposals seek to build on the foundations and 
architecture built during previous phases whilst clearly focusing on 
programme delivery specifically aimed at achieving better outcomes for local 

people and places across Derbyshire. Phase 4 of the Programme will seek to:  
 

 Confirm detailed implementation proposals developed during Phase 3a 
and commence delivery of agreed short and medium-term programmes of 
activity focused on achieving the four Vision Derbyshire strategic 

ambitions  

 Establish a new joint Vision Derbyshire programme team, tasked with 

accelerating and supporting the implementation of delivery plans and 
proposals  

 Build on the success of Phase 3, further extending and deepening the 

engagement and involvement of Elected Members, senior managers and 
partner organisations through agreed implementation and delivery 

proposals  

Page 40



 Establish the new Vision Derbyshire Joint Committee embedding new 
decision-making processes across participating councils  

 Build a broader longer-term delivery programme to meet agreed Vision 
Derbyshire ambitions.  

 
11.2 Detailed delivery programmes for each of the four thematic ambitions are 

currently in development and will be in place by September 2021. Key 
priorities for each of the ambitions which are set out below: 

 
Ambition  Priorities  

Seize Innovation  Business Entrepreneur Scheme 

Smart Towns Programme  
Achieve Relentless Ambition  Careers  

Skills and Employment Research 

Festival of Business 
Social Mobility 

Communities  Homelessness 

Independent Living  
Domestic Abuse 

Live and Work Sustainably  Climate Change 
Shared Planning Policies 

 
 
11.3 A high-level plan, which sets out key activity identified to date, alongside 

Leader, Chief Executive and Lead Officer leads is attached at Appendix A for 
consideration.  

 
11.4 The benefits of progressing the Vision Derbyshire approach are significant, 

both in terms of the potential offered by the approach and the benefits that will 

be accrued through associated programmes of delivery.  
 

11.5 New formal governance arrangements will enable a clear focus and 
accountability for key programmes of work which will streamline current 
arrangements, reduce duplication, and ensure resources can be effectively 

organised and deployed. They will also provide an opportunity to explore 
rationalisation of existing partnership structures and approaches, which will be 

essential given limited capacity and expertise and reducing public sector 
resources.  

 

11.6 The case for change developed through Phase 2 of the approach set out 
potential benefits of taking forward Vision Derbyshire as a group of Derbyshire 
Councils – these include organisational benefits estimated at between £20m 

to £66m and wider system benefits estimated at approximately £1.08bn that 
could be achieved. Whilst these figures are indicative at this stage and subject 

to the decisions taken by individual Councils, it is clear that developing a joint 
approach to a number of complex challenges facing organisations at the 
current time both in terms of: programmes of activity which improve outcomes 

for people and place; and proactive joint working on key enablers, will 
undoubtedly result in better outcomes for people and place and savings.  

 

Page 41



11.7 Any benefits associated with Vision Derbyshire activity will need to link to 
agreed programmes of work as these develop and progress over forthcoming 

months.  
 

 
12 Proposals for Future Governance - Vision Derbyshire Joint Committee  

 

12.1 The creation of new formal governance arrangements to support effective 
decision making is a critical factor in delivering future Vision Derbyshire 

ambitions and progressing a County Deal. Formal governance is important in 
ensuring that Derbyshire Councils can work effectively, maximise 
opportunities for collaboration and provide a platform to enable agile and 

flexible formal joint decision making. Understanding the level of commitment 
to the approach is also essential in identifying the appetite of Derbyshire 

Councils to progress to Phase 4 and beyond, as well as participate in County 
Deal discussions over the forthcoming period.  

 

12.2 A significant amount of work has been undertaken by the Governance 
Working Group during Phase 3 on the development of governance proposals. 

Draft proposals, for the establishment of a Vision Derbyshire Joint Committee, 
were developed and considered by Leaders and Chief Executives of the 
current participating Derbyshire Councils at their meeting on 12th March 

2021. Leaders and Chief Executives were tasked with considering proposals 
within their own organisations and identifying any potential issues and 

challenges in advance of proposals being brought forward for approval.  
 
12.3 The final articles, functions and procedure rules for the proposed Vision 

Derbyshire Joint Committee are now attached at Appendix B, for 
consideration and approval by the Council. These provide a framework for the 

Joint Committee to operate as the future decision-making body for matters 
where Derbyshire Councils will work collaboratively and demonstrate a 
collective political commitment and will to the approach moving forward. The 

articles set out the main aims of the Vision Derbyshire Joint Committee, which 
will:  

 

 Provide collective leadership for Derbyshire  

 Progress shared ambitions for the area  

 Work together to tackle the issues and challenges outlined in the case for 
change; and  

 Enable agile, timely and effective decision making.  
 

12.4 The Joint Committee, on behalf of the participating authorities, will be 
responsible for improving the delivery of functions already within the remit of 
local authorities through statute or through specific collaborative work to 

improve the economic, environmental or social wellbeing of the areas within 
Derbyshire from the following broad definitions:  

 

 Shared service arrangements  

 Incorporating existing partnership arrangements within the Vision 
Derbyshire model  

Page 42



 Areas for collaborative system changes across authorities  

 Specific thematic projects and priorities  

 
12.5 The flow charts which are set out in Appendix C to this report, identify the 

likely flow of decision making that will be required under the four areas 
highlighted above.  

 
12.6 The Joint Committee will initially have responsibility for the approval of agreed 

Phase 4 delivery programmes and the budgets and resources allocated to the 

full programme of work. It is likely that one of the first key tasks of the Joint 
Committee will be the sign off, of the detailed delivery programme as outlined 

in the report.  
 
12.7 In the first instance, the Joint Committee will also have responsibility for 

previously agreed thematic areas of work such as climate change and social 
mobility. As the approach develops, consideration will be given to the Joint 

Committee taking on responsibility for existing partnership arrangements such 
as the Joint Committee for Economic Prosperity and associated programmes 
of work.  

 
12.8 As Phase 4 progress from September 2021, it is envisaged that the Joint 

Committee will take on new areas of work and responsibility as these emerge 
and develop. This will be subject to approval by the Council to delegate those 
additional functions to the Joint Committee. Should there be the proposal to 

delegate any non-executive functions, approval from full Council will be 
required . The further exploration of agreed enablers will for example, identify 

potential areas and opportunities for taking forward shared services which are 
likely to result in efficiencies to those Councils participating in the approach.  

 

12.9 In order to form a Joint Committee two or more authorities in the area must 
delegate functions to that Joint Committee. All local authorities will be 

encouraged to delegate functions to enable full collaboration across the range 
of proposed activities that will form part of Vision Derbyshire and to deliver 
efficient and effective services with improved economies of scale on a county 

wide basis. However, the Articles, Functions and Rules of Procedure set out 
in Appendix B recognise that those authorities who choose not to delegate 

functions to the Joint Committee will still be able to appoint representatives to 
the Committee.  

 

12.10 In order to preserve the decision-making rights of authorities delegating 
functions, it is proposed that voting will be restricted to those representatives 
who are from authorities which have delegated functions to the Committee.  

 
12.11 In view of the fact that the Joint Committee is not a legal entity, to progress 

the approach and to ensure the effective operation of the Joint Committee, a 
host organisation will also be required. The host authority be responsible for 
the administration of meetings of the Joint Committee, hold funding on behalf 

of the Joint Committee and act as the employing authority for the purposes of 
the Programme Team. The host authority’s statutory officers will also act as 

the statutory officers for the Joint Committee. At this time the host authority 

Page 43



has not yet been agreed and is subject to discussion across Derbyshire 
Councils. Therefore. in order to avoid any delay in the commencement of 

operation of the Joint Committee it is proposed that the Executive delegate 
authority to the Leader of the Council to agree the host authority in due 

course. A number of authorities have indicated a preference to become the 
host authority (not including this Council). 

 

12.12 All Derbyshire Councils are now being asked, and will need to consider, 
whether they wish to progress their involvement in Vision Derbyshire moving 

forward, the implications of which are set out above. This includes the 
approval of proposals to establish the Joint Committee, approval to delegate 
the identified functions as set out in the report and the nomination of Leader 

representatives to sit on the Joint Committee. It is important to note that with 
the prospect of Vision Derbyshire and the Joint Committee providing the 

foundations and structure for a County Deal, those councils not wishing to 
progress their involvement in Vision Derbyshire at this time will still be able to 
make a decision to join in the future.  

 
12.13 The Council is now asked to consider proposals as set out in the report in 

relation to the authority’s future involvement in Vision Derbyshire and the 
proposed Vision Derbyshire Joint Committee. The establishment of 
governance arrangements through the Joint Committee formalise Vision 

Derbyshire as an approach. Given the role the Council has played in 
developing the Vision Derbyshire approach, it is recommended that the 

authority delegate functions to the Joint Committee as set out in report to 
enable it to be formed, agree the governance arrangements at Appendix B 
and to delegate authority to the Leader to agree by executive member 

decision which authority will act as the Vision Derbyshire host authority. It is 
also recommended that the Leader, Cllr Anthony McKeown, be nominated to 

represent the Council on the Joint Committee once it is formed and the 
Deputy Leader, Cllr Damien Greenhalgh, be nominated as substitute.  

 

 
13 Taking Forward Proposals  

 
13.1 Whilst significant progress has been made on the development of the 

approach to date, it has become increasingly apparent that the ability to 

accelerate delivery is currently limited due to the lack of capacity. This is 
particularly the case at a project and programme delivery level. The lack of 

resource at what has been a critical time for local government in terms of the 
recent pandemic has slowed the delivery response.  

 

13.2 Proposals to adequately resource Phase 4 ambitions and plans, initially for a 
twelve-month period, are set out below and create the following programme 

resource:  
 

 Programme team – comprising combination of team members to facilitate 

delivery  

Page 44



 Programme budget – funding to support the buy in of specialist expertise 
and support and support the operation of the Joint Committee and other 

associated costs  

 Communications budget – funding to support branding, design, 

campaigns, social media activity etc  

 Equipment, travel and subsistence – to support the activities of the 

programme team  

 Accommodation – in-kind support from host agency/agencies  

 
13.3 Proposals for the Programme Team include the creation of the following roles 

on a fixed term basis:  

 

 Programme Manager  

 4 Senior Project Officers (one per ambition theme)  

 Communications Officer  

 Admin Support Officer  
 
13.4 The total cost of taking forward resourcing proposals per annum is £436,248.  

 
Resource Cost 

 £ 
Programme Team   

Programme Manager  47,181 (oncosts 13,211)  

4 Senior Project Officers (1 per theme)  131,652 (oncosts 36,863)  

Communications Officer  32,913 (oncosts 9,216) 

Admin Support Officer  19,697 (oncosts 5,515)  

Programme Budget  100,000  

Equipment, Travel and Subsistence  10,000  

Communications Budget 30,000 

  

Total 436,248 

 
 

13.5 Subject to approval of proposals, it has been agreed that the costs of 
preparing for and taking forward Phase 4 proposals, should be shared across 
Councils using the following split:  

 
Council Cost Split 

 £ 

County Council 40% split 174,499  

District and Borough Councils 
60% split 

261,749  
(32,719 per council if eight councils)  

(37,393 per council if seven councils)  
(43,635 per council if six councils)  

(52,350 per council if five councils)  

Page 45



Total  436,248  

 
 

13.6 The Council’s contribution to the total cost of supporting Vision Derbyshire 
Phase 4 is therefore likely to be a maximum of £52,350 based on the 
involvement of five participating Derbyshire Councils. This figure will reduce 

should a greater number of Council agree proposals to become a participating 
Council. Involvement in Phase 4 presents a unique opportunity for the Council 

to participate in the further development and implementation of an innovative 
and collaborative approach for Derbyshire and a delivery programme which 
will support the achievement of key Council priorities which will ultimately 

benefit local people across local communities in High Peak and Derbyshire as 
a whole. The ability to pool resources on the programme is likely to deliver 

significant benefits across a range of activities.  
 
13.7 The Council’s costs in year one will be met from the Efficiency and 

Rationalisation Earmarked Reserve. Section 11.6 of the report highlights the 
significant financial savings that could be achieved through enhanced two-tier 

working brought about by the Vision Derbyshire approach. It is difficult at this 
early stage to pinpoint the actual financial benefit to HPBC of the initial 
financial investment. However, significant financial savings have already been 

realised through the following early work: 
 

 Homelessness – a shared approach to the ’everyone in’ requirements 

during the COVID-19 response in 2020 resulted in significant lower costs 
for the Council 

 Business entrepreneur scheme – this initiative has resulted in significant 
additional business support in High Peak at a lower cost  

 
Additional financial savings are guaranteed through participation in the 
following Vision Derbyshire work: 

 

 Climate Change – a shared approach to county wide climate change 

initiatives will reduce the additional financial commitments that the Council 
will need to make 

 Shared Planning Policy – a county wide approach to the development of 
specific shared planning policy will limit the investment needed to be made 
by the Council in the development of the updated Local Plan  

 Economic and Community Recovery Work – a collaborative approach to 
COVID-19 recovery will significantly reduce the necessary new investment 

that will be needed to be made by the Council    
 
13.8 Future years costs will be the subject to further confirmation by the Executive 

after a review of the implementation of Phase 4 of the programme and a 
review of its benefits to High Peak. 

 
13.9 Where an authority determines through its own governance arrangements 

that it no longer wishes to be a member of the Joint Committee, that authority 

may cease its membership with effect from the date of its decision. However, 
authorities will remain liable for any previously agreed financial contributions 

Page 46



to fund Vision Derbyshire until the end of the financial year for which those 
contributions have been agreed regardless of any decision to cease 

membership. 
 

13.10 Where long term liabilities, such as any Pension Fund shortfall, exists they will 
be calculated at the point membership ceases and any council exiting the 
arrangement will pay the host authority an amount to cover their share of that 

liability.  
 

13.11 It is therefore recommended that the Executive approves the authority’s active 
and continued involvement in Vision Derbyshire and the associated costs as 
set out in the report. 

 
13.12 Wider engagement with Leadership Teams within participating Councils, both 

at an Elected Member and Senior Management Team level, will continue to 
be vital moving forward and a key action which will feature strongly through 
future phases of the approach. It will be important to ensure that the authority 

is engaged in proposals as they emerge and develop over forthcoming 
months to maximise the benefits for local people and communities in High 

Peak. Identifying the key actions which the Council will need to undertake, 
and the resources and capacity required to participate fully in both the 
development and future implementation of proposals will also be important.  

 
 
14 Constitutional / Legal Implications  

 
14.1 Section 101(5) of the Local Government Act 1972 (LGA 1972) permits 

councils to make arrangements for two or more authorities to discharge any of 
their functions jointly, and arrange for the discharge of those functions by a 

Joint Committee.  
 
14.2 Under s102 LGA 1972 two or more local authorities may appoint a joint 

committee of those authorities for the purpose of discharging any of their 
functions. Those two or more authorities would need to agree to delegate 

functions or powers to the joint committee to enable it to discharge those 
functions. Those two or more authorities may permit other authorities to 
appoint members to the joint committee without those authorities delegating 

functions into it. However, all authorities that wish to join the joint committee 
will need to formally agree to set up the committee and agree the terms of 

reference to be able to appoint a member to the committee.  
 
14.3 All members appointed to the joint committee are members of that committee. 

Under the legislation, all members would have the right to participate and vote 
on any matters at the joint committee. However, voting rights can be restricted 

to members of those authorities who have delegated functions to it in the 
Terms of Reference so that authorities would not be able to vote in respect of 
functions they have not delegated to the joint committee.  

 
14.4 Section 9EB of the Local Government Act 2000 (LGA 2000) enables the 

Secretary of State to make regulations permitting arrangements under section 

Page 47



101(5) of the LGA 1972 where any of the functions are the responsibility of 
the executive of the Authority. The relevant regulations are the Local 

Authorities (Arrangements for the Discharge of Functions) (England) 
Regulations 2012. Regulation 11 makes provision for joint arrangements to 

involve a joint committee under section 101(5) of the LGA 1972.  
 
14.5 The functions being delegated to the Vision Derbyshire Committee at this 

stage are executive functions. In accordance with the legislation and the 
Council’s Constitution, the decision to establish the Vision Derbyshire 

Committee and determine the number of members to be appointed to the 
Committee and their terms of office should be made by the Executive. 

 

14.6 As the functions are executive functions, the regulations also require that the 
members appointed to the Vision Derbyshire Committee should be members 

of the Executive.  
 
14,7 In accordance with the Regulation 12 Local Authorities (Arrangements for the 

Discharge of Functions) (England) Regulations 2012, a local authority with 
executive arrangements delegating executive functions is not able to co-opt 

additional members to the Committee. However, an authority operating a 
committee system is able to co-opt additional members. Therefore, the ability 
to co-opt is restricted within the Terms of Reference to obtaining a majority 

vote in relation to any proposal to co-opt. Such co-optees shall not be 
Members of the Joint Committee and shall have no voting rights.  

 
14.8 Any requests for information received by the Joint Committee should be 

directed to the relevant constituent authority for that authority to deal wi th in 

the usual way, taking account of the relevant legislation. Where the request 
relates to information held by 2 or more constituent authorities, they will liaise 

with each other before replying to the request. The host authority will co-
ordinate responses to ensure that legislative deadlines are met.  

 

14.9 As part of the process of making decisions and changing policy, the Vision 
Derbyshire Committee will in accordance with the public sector equality duty 

to consider the need to:  
 

 Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation  

 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share protected 
characteristics (as defined by equalities legislation) and those who don’t.  

 Foster good relations between people who share protected characteristics 
and those who don’t.  

 
 

 

Page 48



APPENDIX A 

Vision Derbyshire - High Level Plan 

 

P
age 49



 

APPENDIX B 
 

PROPOSED GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS FOR VISION DERBYSHIRE  
 

ARTICLES  
 
1.  Context  

 
1.1 Vision Derbyshire is a collaborative working model between local authorities 

across Derbyshire which seeks to improve outcomes for people and place 
through closer working between those authorities without formal, top-down 
reorganisation from central government.  

 
1.2 These governance arrangements provide a framework to reach the intended 

outcome of a model that will enable local authorities in Derbyshire to work 
collaboratively to deliver efficient and effective services with improved 
economies as an alternative to a government led reorganisation of local 

government in the county.  
 
1.3 A joint committee, to be known as the Vision Derbyshire Joint Committee, 

will: 
 

 Provide collective leadership for Derbyshire  

 Progress shared ambitions for the area  

 Work together to tackle the issues and challenges outlined in the case for 
change.  

 Enable agile, timely and effective decision making  
 
1.4 The Vision Derbyshire model allows local authorities to blend working at a 

hyper-local level with a large strategic level. Authorities will collaborate at 
three levels:  

 

 regional/national  

 county-wide or  

 local place level,  
 

depending on the nature of the outcome that the authorities are looking to 
improve. In adopting this way of working, Derbyshire can blend strategic, 

county-wide and local approaches to tackle outcomes in a multi-faceted way, 
and maintain focus on people and places, not organisational boundaries.  

 

1.5  To enable the delivery of the above, the Joint Committee will act as the 
enabling body, through the political leadership of councillors from the 

participating authorities. Councils within Derbyshire may choose to appoint 
members to the Joint Committee, but not to delegate any functions. Should 
any council choose to do this, then they will still be required to agree to the 

Terms of Reference for the Committee and contribute towards the cost of 
funding the Committee.  

Page 50



 
1.6 The authorities in the Vision Derbyshire working model are committed to the 

provision of improved services. It is considered that this will, in certain 
instances, be best achieved by the joint provision of services, joint working 

and / or the development of common standards and protocols. All proposals 
for the setting up of any new services or the discharge of functions are in the 
first instance to be subject to an investigation into the suitability of providing 

such services or discharging such functions, as a joint service for all 
participating Councils. All participating Councils agree to operate all reviews in 

an open and transparent manner to support the aims and objectives of Vision 
Derbyshire. This will include the sharing of all information.  

 
2.  Membership of the Joint Committee  

 

2.1 [named local authorities who are delegating functions] shall appoint one of 
their Elected Members to be a member of the Joint Committee and one 
Member to be a substitute Member. 

 
2.2 All other councils within Derbyshire, whether or not delegating functions to the 

Joint Committee, will be permitted to appoint one member to the Joint 
Committee and to nominate one member as a substitute.  

 

2.3 A Substitute Member will have the same rights to receive meeting papers and 
to access information as the Member for whom s/he is a substitute.  

 
2.4 All appointments as Members or Substitute Members of the Joint Committee 

shall be for a term of one year, but an individual may be re- appointed to 

serve as a Member or Substitute Member any number of times.  
 

2.5 All councils shall be entitled at any time to terminate the appointment of a 
Member or Substitute Member appointed by it and to appoint another of its 
Elected Members in that person’s place. Where a Council exercises this 

power it shall give written notice of the new appointment and the termination 
of the previous appointment to the Monitoring Officer responsible for the Joint 

Committee and the new appointment shall take effect and the previous 
appointment terminate at the end of one week from the date on which the 
notice is given or such longer period not exceeding one month as is specified 

in the notice.  
 

2.6 A Member or Substitute Member of the Joint Committee who ceases (for 
whatever reason) to be an Elected Member of the Council that appointed 
them shall immediately cease to be a Member or Substitute Member of the 

Joint Committee, and the relevant Council shall as soon as practicable give 
written notice of this to the Monitoring Officer responsible for the Joint 

Committee and appoint another of its Elected Members in that person’s place.  
 
2.7 A person may resign as a Member or Substitute Member of the Joint 

Committee by written notice served on the Proper Officer of the Council that 
appointed them and the resignation shall take effect on receipt of the notice 

by the Proper Officer. The relevant Council shall as soon as practicable give 

Page 51



written notice of this to the Monitoring Officer responsible for the Joint 
Committee and appoint another of its Elected Members in that person’s place. 

 
2.8  Where an appointing Council operates executive arrangements (within the 

meaning of the Local Government Act 2000), the appointment, removal and 
replacement of Members and Substitute Members of the Joint Committee 
shall be decided in accordance with the constitutional requirements of that 

Council, but it is anticipated that all Members and Substitute Members 
appointed by it shall be Members of its executive and will include its executive 

leader or elected mayor.  
 
2.9 All appointments, removals and replacements of Members and Substitute 

Members of the Joint Committee by Councils shall be made by notice in 
writing addressed to the Monitoring Officer responsible for the Joint 

Committee. Any such notice shall be deemed to have been given when 
received by the Monitoring Officer.  

 

2.10 Any individual council that does not operate executive arrangements and 
which wishes to co-opt an additional member or members can only do so 

following consultation with and a majority vote of all voting members of the 
Joint Committee being supportive of that authority exercising powers of co-
option. Such co-optees shall not be Members of the Joint Committee and 

shall have no voting rights. They shall, however, observe the Code of Conduct 
for Members set out from whichever authority they serve on. An individual’s 

co-option shall terminate as soon as his/her involvement with the organisation 
that gave rise to the co-option ceases; and such co-option shall be endorsed 
annually by the Joint Committee and subsequently confirmed formally by the 

appointing authority.  
 

2.11 All Members of the Joint Committee (including any Substitute Members acting 
in place of Members of the Joint Committee) will:-  

 

(a) (subject to the Joint Committee’s voting arrangements) collectively be 
the ultimate policy makers of the Joint Committee;  

(b)  bring views of their communities into the Joint Committee’s decision 
making process; and  

(c)  maintain the highest standards of conduct and ethics.  

 
2.12 Members will at all times observe the Code of Conduct for Members which is 

in force in their own Council and any breaches will be reported to the 
Monitoring Officer of their own Council.  

 

2.13 No remuneration shall be payable to Joint Committee Members other than 
allowances for travel and subsistence in accordance with the Members’ 

Allowances Schemes in operation at the participating Councils and non-
participating Councils. (It is acknowledged that a participating Council or a 
non-participating Council may, in accordance with its own procedures, pay a 

special responsibility allowance to any Elected Member appointed by it to the 
Joint Committee in respect of duties and responsibilities undertaken as a 

Member or Substitute Member of the Joint Committee.)  

Page 52



 
3  Chairing the Joint Committee  

 
3.1 The Chair of the Joint Committee will be appointed by the Committee. The 

Joint Committee can only be chaired by a Member of the Joint Committee 
appointed by a Council which has delegated functions to the Joint Committee 
for the duration of a municipal year.  

 
3.2 In the event that there are more than two Members nominated for the role of 

Chair, and there is not a clear majority of votes in favour of one Member, then 
the name of the Member with the least number of votes will be eliminated and 
that process will continue until a Chair is elected with a majority of votes.  

 
3.3 The Joint Committee will appoint a Vice-Chair to deputise for the Chair when 

they are not present or available. The Vice-Chair must also be from a Council 
which has delegated functions to the Joint Committee and will be appointed 
for the duration of a municipal year.  

 
3.4 In the event that there are more than two Members nominated for the role of 

Vice-Chair, and there is not a clear majority of votes in favour of one Member, 
then the name of the Member with the least number of votes will be eliminated 
and that process will continue until a Vice-Chair is elected with a majority of 

votes.  
3.5 The Chair or Vice-Chair of the Joint Committee will cease to hold such office 

when they cease to be a Member of the Joint Committee, in accordance with 
the provisions set out at paragraph 3.5 above.  

 

4.  Procedural Arrangements  

 

4.1 The Joint Committee shall meet in accordance with its agreed calendar of 
meetings throughout a municipal year, but additional meetings may take place 
should the need arise.  

 
4.2 Each Member of the Joint Committee appointed by councils which have 

delegated functions to the Joint Committee shall have one vote.  
 
4.3 Members of the Joint Committee appointed by councils which have not 

delegated functions to the Joint Committee will not have the right to vote  
 

4.4 The proceedings of the Joint Committee shall not be invalidated by any 
vacancy among its Members or Substitute Members or by any defect in the 
appointment or qualifications of any Member or Substitute Member.  

 
5.  Records of Proceedings  

 
5.1 The Joint Committee shall make arrangements for the names of Members 

and Substitute Members present at any meeting to be recorded.  

 
5.2  Minutes of the proceedings of a meeting of the Joint Committee, or any sub-

committee, shall be kept in such form as the Joint Committee may determine.  

Page 53



 
5.3 Any such minutes are to be agreed as a true record and signed at the same 

or next suitable meeting of the Joint Committee or sub-committee by the 
Member chairing that meeting. 

5.4  A Member of the Joint Committee, or any sub-committee, has the right to 
have their vote on any matter recorded in the minutes of the meeting at which 
the vote was cast.  

 
6. Sub-Committees  

 
6.1 The Joint Committee may establish such sub-committees as it thinks fit to 

discharge its functions  
 
7.  Officers  

 
7.1  The Head of Paid Service (appointed under Section 4 of the Local 

Government and Housing Act 1989), Section 151 Officer (appointed under 

Section 73 of the Local Government Act 1975) and Monitoring Officer 
(appointed under section 5 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989) 

of the host authority for the Joint Committee will serve as the statutory officers 
in support of the Joint Committee.  

 

7.2 The Joint Committee may call upon any officer of any of the local authorities 
who have members on the Joint Committee for advice and assistance, as it 

considers necessary to carry out its functions.  
 
8.  Scrutiny of decisions  

 
8.1  Each constituent authority which operates executive arrangements will be 

able to scrutinise the decisions of the Joint Committee in accordance with that 
constituent authority’s overview and scrutiny arrangements. Any authority that 
operates a committee system model of governance will have the discretion to 

scrutinise decisions of the Joint Committee according its own specific 
governance arrangements.  

 
9  Winding up of the Joint Committee and Cessation of Membership  

 

9.1  The Joint Committee may be wound up immediately by a unanimous vote of 
all constituent authorities. 

 
9.2  Where an authority determines through its own governance arrangements 

that it no longer wishes to be a member of the Joint Committee, that authority 

may cease its membership with effect from the date of its decision. However 
authorities will remain liable for any previously agreed financial contributions 

to fund Vision Derbyshire until the end of the financial year for which those 
contributions have been agreed regardless of any decision to cease 
membership. Where long term liabilities, such as any Pension Fund shortfall, 

exists they will be calculated at the point membership ceases and any council 
exiting the arrangement will pay the host authority an amount to cover their 

share of that liability. 

Page 54



FUNCTIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES  

 

a. The Joint Committee is established pursuant to Section 101(5) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, which permits local authorities to make arrangements 

for two or more authorities to discharge functions jointly, so long as it is a 
function that the law reserves to a specified committee. The Joint Committee 
is established with the following aims:  

 

 Provide collective leadership for Derbyshire  

 Progress shared ambitions for the area  

 Work together to tackle the issues and challenges outlined in the case for 

change.  

 Enable agile, timely and effective decision making  
 

b. The Joint Committee, on behalf of the participating authorities, will be 
responsible for improving the delivery of functions already within the remit of 

local authorities through statute or through specific collaborative work to 
improve the economic, environmental or social wellbeing of the areas within 
Derbyshire from the following broad definitions:-  

 

 Shared service arrangements  

 Incorporating existing partnership arrangements within the Vision 
Derbyshire model  

 Areas for collaborative system changes across authorities  

 Specific thematic projects and priorities  

 
c. Within those broad definitions, the Joint Committee will:-  

 

(i) Oversee the Vision Derbyshire Delivery Programme  
(ii)  Determine the programme of projects and work streams, how those will 

be managed and communicated to stakeholders and the public  
(iii)  Monitor and review performance in respect of services delivered 

through the Vision Derbyshire Joint Committee and authorise the 

publication of an annual report of performance and outcomes  
(iv)  Commission strategic outline and full business cases for individual 

councils to consider opportunities for more collaborative working in 
respect of shared services  

(v)  Approve annual business plans for the delivery of shared services  

(vi)  Provide or assume democratic oversight for existing joint committee 
and partnership arrangements  

(vii)  Provide a platform for the devolution of powers from Government to 
authorities in Derbyshire  

(viii)  Determine requests from individual authorities or groups of authorities 

to work collaboratively on specific projects or work streams  
(ix)  Provide a forum for councils and their representatives to provide 

challenge to each other with the aim of increasing collaboration to 
deliver efficient, effective and economic services, which equally 
improve the offer and outcomes to residents and businesses  

(x) Delegate functions and responsibilities to sub-committees or officers as 
the Committee deems appropriate.  

Page 55



 
d. The functions of the Joint Committee conferred or imposed upon it by any 

Orders from the Secretary of State and / or the functions of the Joint 
Committee delegated to it by Orders approved by participating authorities will 

be set out within these terms of reference.  
 

e. The Joint Committee will exercise all its powers and duties in accordance with 

the law and these terms of reference and procedure rules.  
 

f. The authorities appointing to the Joint Committee are:  
 

 Insert names of authorities 

 
g. It is a matter for each individual Council to determine which functions and 

responsibilities it chooses to delegate to the Joint Committee according to its 
own individual governance arrangements.  

 

  

Page 56



PROCEDURE RULES  

 

These procedure rules apply where appropriate to the Joint Committee and Sub-
Committees established by the Joint Committee.  
 
1.  Name  

 

1.1  The name of the Joint Committee shall be the ‘Vision Derbyshire Joint 
Committee’.  

 
2.  Membership  

 

2.1  The membership of the Joint Committee shall be determined in accordance 
with the provisions of Article 2.  

 
3.  Meetings  

 

3.1  The Annual Meeting of the Joint Committee shall be held each year on such a 
day in the month of March, April, May or June as the Joint Committee may fix, 

to deal with any other business normally transacted at an annual meeting.  
 
3.2 The Joint Committee shall meet throughout the municipal year in accordance 

with its agreed calendar of meetings, but additional meetings may take place 
should the need arise. The dates and times of meetings of the Joint 

Committee (including the Annual Meeting and extraordinary meetings) shall 
be determined by the Joint Committee. Such meetings shall be held at a 
venue determined by the Chair. Save as provided elsewhere in these 

Procedure Rules all meetings of the Joint Committee, sub-committees and 
working party meetings shall be summoned by the Proper Officer of the host 

authority.  
 
3.3  An extraordinary meeting of the Joint Committee may be called at any time by 

the Chair. If the Chair refuses to call an extraordinary meeting of the Joint 
Committee after a requisition for that purpose signed by three Members of the 

Joint Committee has been presented to him/her or if, without so refusing, the 
Chair does not call an extraordinary meeting within seven days after the 
requisition has been presented to him/her then any three Members of the 

Joint Committee, on that refusal, or on the expiration of those seven days, as 
the case may be, may forthwith call an extraordinary meeting of the Joint 

Committee  
 
3.4  No business shall be considered at any extraordinary meeting save such as is 

specified in any requisition of the Joint Committee calling such meeting, or as 
the case may be, in the requisition presented to the Chair by Members.  

 
4.  Chair and Vice-Chair  

 

4.1  Article 4 sets out the arrangements for the appointment of Chair and Vice-
Chair of the Joint Committee.  

 

Page 57



4.2  If the Chair is absent from a meeting the Vice-Chair, if present, shall preside.  
 

4.3  If both the Chair and Vice-Chair are absent from a meeting of the Joint 
Committee, such Member as the Members of the Joint Committee present so 

choose, shall preside.  
 
4.4  Any power or duty of the Chair in relation to the conduct of a meeting may be 

exercised by the person presiding at the meeting.  
 
5. Quorum  

 
5.1  The quorum for a meeting will be two or one third of the total of the members 

of the Committee who are entitled to vote, whichever is the greater.  
 

5.2  If during a meeting the Chair, after counting the number of Members present, 
declares that there are not at least two of the Members present, who are 
entitled to vote, the meeting shall stand adjourned. The names of those 

Members who are present shall be recorded in the minutes of the meeting. 
Consideration of any business not transacted shall be adjourned to a date and 

time fixed by the Chair at the time the meeting is adjourned, or if s/he does 
not so fix a date and time, to the next meeting of the Joint Committee.  

 

6.  Chair's Announcements  
 

6.1  No discussion shall take place on any announcement made by the chair of the 
meeting, but any Member shall be at liberty to move a motion, without notice, 
to refer the subject matter of any such announcement to the next ordinary 

meeting of the Joint Committee and such motion, on being seconded, shall be 
at once put to the vote.  

 
 
7.  Order of Business  

 

7.1  Except as otherwise provided by paragraph 7.2 of this Rule, the order of 

business at every meeting of the Joint Committee other than the annual 
meeting and any extraordinary meeting shall be:-  

 

 
(a) To choose a person to preside if the Chair and Vice-Chair are absent;  

(b)  Apologies for absence;  
(c)  To receive disclosures by Members of interests in matters under 

consideration;  

(d)  To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes of the last 
meeting of the Joint Committee;  

(e)  To deal with any business expressly required by statute to be done;  
(f)  Chair's announcements;  
(g)  To dispose of business, if any, remaining from the last meeting;  

(h)  To receive minutes of sub-committees;  
(i)  To receive and consider reports, if any, from sub-committees;  

(j)  To receive and consider reports from constituent authorities;  

Page 58



(k)  To receive minutes of and recommendations from other bodies;  
 

(l)  To consider motions, if any, in the order in which notice has been 
received;  

(m) To deal with other business, if any, specified in the summons.  
 
7.2  The Chair may at any meeting vary the order of business so as to give 

precedence to any business which in his/her opinion is of special urgency but 
such a variation shall not displace any business falling under items (a), (b), (d) 

or (e) in paragraph 7.1 of this Rule.  
 
7.3  At any extraordinary meeting of the Joint Committee the minutes of the last 

ordinary meeting of the Joint Committee will not be considered. The minutes 
of an extraordinary meeting of the Joint Committee will be submitted where 

possible to the next ordinary meeting of the Joint Committee.  
 
8.  Notice of Motion  

 
8.1  Except as provided by Rule 9, every notice of motion shall be in writing, 

signed by the Member or Members of the Joint Committee giving the notice 
and delivered by email or in person at least seven clear days before the next 
meeting of the Joint Committee at the office of the Head of Paid Service of the 

host authority, by whom it shall be dated, numbered in the order in which it is 
received and a record kept, which shall be open to the inspection of every 

Member of the Joint Committee during normal office hours.  
 
8.2  Every motion shall be relevant to some matter in relation to the Joint 

Committee's powers or duties.  
 

8.3  The Head of Paid Service of the host authority shall set out in the summons 
for every meeting of the Joint Committee motions of which notice has been 
duly given in the order in which they have been received, unless the 

Member(s) giving such notice intimated in writing, when giving it, that s/he 
proposed to move it at some later meeting or has withdrawn it in writing.  

 
8.4  If a motion set out in the summons is not moved either by a Member who 

gave notice thereof or by some other Member on his/her behalf, i t shall, 

unless postponed by consent of the Joint Committee, be treated as withdrawn 
and shall not be moved without fresh notice.  

 
9.  Motions which may be moved without notice  

 

9.1  The following motions may be moved without notice: -  
 

(a)  Appointing a Chair of the meeting at which a motion is moved;  
(b)  Motions relating to the accuracy of the minutes;  
(c)  That an item of business specified in the summons has precedence;  

(d)  Appointment of a sub-committee or members thereof occasioned by 
the appointment;  

(e)  That leave be given to withdraw a motion;  

Page 59



(f)  That leave be given to withdraw in whole or in part or amend the 
minutes or proceedings of the Joint Committee or any sub-committee;  

(g)  That the Joint Committee proceeds to the next business;  
(h)  That the question be now put;  

(i)  That the debate be now adjourned;  
(j)  That the Joint Committee does now adjourn;  
(k)  Amendments to any motion to approve the Minutes or proceedings of 

the Joint Committee or any sub-committee any part of which has been 
withdrawn or amended in accordance with Rule 9(f);  

(l)  Suspending Procedure Rules in accordance with Rule 18;  
(m) A motion, under Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 

1972 (relating to admission to meetings of local authorities);  

(n)  That a Member named under Rule 12 be not further heard or do leave 
the meeting;  

(o)  Giving consent or leave of the Joint Committee where the consent or 
leave of the Joint Committee is required by these Procedure Rules;  

 

(p)  That the subject matter of an announcement made by the chair of the 
meeting be referred to the next meeting of the Joint Committee or the 

appropriate sub-committee;  
(q)  Approval or amendment of recommendations of Officers and any 

consequential resolutions.  

 
10.  Amendments to Motions  

 
10.1  Normally, no motion to amend a motion other than a motion which may be 

moved without notice under Rule 9 shall be moved at any meeting of the Joint 

Committee unless not less than 24 hours’ notice in writing of the motion, 
signed by the Member(s) giving notice, is delivered to the Monitoring Officer of 

the host authority. The Head of Paid Service of the host authority shall inform 
the Chair of the Joint Committee of any such amendments so received.  

 
11.  Rules of Debate  

 

11.1  A motion or amendment shall not be discussed unless it has been proposed 
and seconded.  

 

11.2 An amendment shall be relevant to the motion and shall be either:–  
 

(a) to refer a subject of debate to the next meeting of the Joint Committee 
or the sub-committee for consideration or re-consideration; or  

(b) to leave out words and insert or add others; or  

(c)  to insert or add words;  
 

but such omission, insertion or addition of words shall not have the effect of 
negating the motion before the Joint Committee.  

 

11.3  Only one amendment may be moved and discussed at a time and no further 
amendment shall be moved until the amendment under discussion has been 

disposed of. 

Page 60



11.4  When an amendment has been lost, other amendments may be moved on the 
original motion. If an amendment is carried, the motion as amended shall take 

the place of the original motion and shall become the motion to which any 
further amendment may be moved.  

 
11.5  When a motion is under debate no other motion shall be moved except the 

following:-  

 
(a)  to amend or withdraw the motion provided that the notice of 

amendment has been properly given in accordance with these 
Procedure Rules;  

(b)  to adjourn the meeting;  

(c)  to proceed to the next business;  
(d)  that the question be now put;  

(e)  that a Member be not further heard.  
 
11.6  The ruling of the Chair on a point of order or on the admissibility of a personal 

explanation shall not be open to discussion.  
 

11.7  A Member who does not have the right to vote on a matter shall have the 
same rights to speak on a matter as a Member with the right to vote on that 
matter. 

 
12.  Disorderly Conduct  

 
12.1  If at a meeting any Member of the Joint Committee in the opinion of the Chair 

misconducts himself/herself by persistently disregarding the ruling of the Chair 

or by behaving irregularly, improperly, or offensively, or by wilfully obstructing 
the business of the Joint Committee, the Chair may move ‘That the Member 

named be not further heard’ and the motion if seconded shall be put and 
determined without discussion.  

 

12.2  If the Member named continues his/her misconduct after a motion under the 
foregoing paragraph has been carried the Chair shall either move ‘That the 

Member named do leave the meeting’ (in which case the motion shall be put 
and determined without seconding or discussion), or adjourn the meeting of 
the Joint Committee for such period as s/he in his/her discretion shall consider 

expedient.  
 

12.3  In the event of general disturbance which in the opinion of the Chair renders 
the due and orderly dispatch of business impossible, the Chair in addition to 
any power vested in him/her may, without question put, adjourn the meeting 

of the Joint Committee for such period as s/he in his/her discretion shall 
consider expedient.  

 
13.  Rescission of Previous Resolution  

 

13.1  No motion to rescind any resolution passed within the preceding six months, 
and no motion or amendment to the same effect as one which has been 

rejected within the preceding six months shall be proposed unless the notice 

Page 61



thereof given in pursuance of Rule 8 bears the names of at least five 
Members of the Joint Committee. When any such motion or amendment has 

been disposed of by the Joint Committee, it shall not be open to any Member 
to propose a similar motion within a further period of six months.  

 
13.2  Provided that this Rule shall not apply to motions moved by the Chair or other 

Members of the Joint Committee in pursuance of a recommendation of a sub-

committee.  
 
14.  Mode of Voting  

 
14.1  

 
(a)  Every proposition shall, unless otherwise required by these Procedure 

Rules or statute, be determined by show of hands.  
(b)  In taking the votes on any proposition, only those Members who are 

present in the room when the proposition is put from the chair shall be 

entitled to vote.  
(c)  After a proposition is put from the Chair but before the vote is taken, 

any three Members by show of hands may require that the voting shall 
be recorded in the minutes of the meeting so as to show whether each 
Member present gave his/her vote for or against that proposition or 

abstained from the voting.  
(d)  Except where a recorded vote has been taken, any Member who is 

present when the vote was taken may require that his/her vote for or 
against the question or abstention shall be recorded in the minutes by 
notifying the Head of Paid Service of the host authority.  

 
14.2  Where there are more than two persons nominated for any position to be filled 

by the Joint Committee and of the votes given there is not a majority in favour 
of one person, the one having the least number of votes shall be struck off the 
list and a fresh vote shall be taken, and so on, until a majority of votes is given 

in favour of one person.  
 

14.3  In the case of an equality of votes the Chair shall have a second or casting 
vote.  
 
15.  Urgent Business  

 

15.1  The Head of Paid Service, Chief Financial Officer and the Monitoring Officer 
of the host authority shall each be empowered individually to take any action 
which is required as a matter of urgency in the interests of the Joint 

Committee, after consultation (where practicable) with the Chair of the Joint 
Committee, on behalf of and within the powers and duties of the Joint 

Committee. All such action shall be reported to the next meeting of the Joint 
Committee.  

 

16.  Variation and Revocation of Procedure Rules  

 

Page 62



16.1  Any motion to add to, vary or revoke these Procedure Rules shall when 
proposed and seconded stand adjourned without discussion to the next 

ordinary meeting of the Joint Committee, provided that this Rule shall not 
apply to any review of Procedure Rules at the annual meeting of the Joint 

Committee.  
 
17.  Suspension of Procedure Rules  

 
17.1  No Rule shall be suspended at any meeting of the Joint Committee except on 

the vote of a majority of the members then present.  
 
18.  Recordings at Meetings  

 
18.1  The Local Audit and Accountability Act allows persons:  

 
(a)  To film, photograph or make sound recordings of proceedings at a 

meeting of a body to which this section applies, or of a committee or - 

sub-committee of such a body;  
(b)  To use other means for enabling persons not present at such a 

meeting to see or hear proceedings at the meeting, as it takes place or 
later;  

(c)  To report or provide commentary on the proceedings at such a meeting 

orally or in writing, so that the report or commentary is available, as the 
meeting takes place or later, to persons not present at the meeting.  

 
19.  Record of Attendance  

 

19.1 Every Member of the Joint Committee attending a meeting or a meeting of a 
sub-committees of which s/he is a member, shall have their attendance 

recorded and published through the website of the host authority.  
 
20.  Appointment of Sub-Committees  

 
20.1  The Joint Committee may establish such sub-committees as it deems 

appropriate or it is required to appoint by or under any statute.  
 
20.2  Subject to any statutory provision in that behalf the Joint Committee:–  

 
(a)  shall not appoint any member of a sub-committee so as to hold office 

later than the next annual meeting of the Joint Committee;  
 
(b)  may at any time dissolve a sub-committee or alter its membership; 

every vacancy on a sub-committee shall be reported by the Head of 
Paid Service of the host authority at the first meeting of the Joint 

Committee after the vacancy has arisen and the Joint Committee may 
thereupon proceed to fill the vacancy.  

 

20.3  The Joint Committee may appoint sub-committees for purposes to be 
specified by the Committee and, subject to these Procedure Rules and to any 

Page 63



resolution of the Joint Committee in that behalf, may delegate to any such 
sub-committee any power or duty delegated by the Joint Committee.  

 
20.4  The Chair and Vice-Chair of the Joint Committee shall be ex-officio members 

of every sub-committee appointed by the committee.  
 
20.5  The membership of a sub-committee may include persons who are not 

members of the Joint Committee by which the sub-committee was appointed, 
however where such persons are not Members of the Joint Committee, they 

shall be appointed as non-voting members. 
  
20.6  A Joint Committee shall not appoint any member of a sub-committee so as to 

hold office later than the next annual meeting of the Joint Committee and may 
at any time dissolve a sub-committee or alter its membership.  

 
21.  Quorum of Sub-Committees  

 

21.1  Except where ordered by the Joint Committee or authorised by statute, or set 
out in the specific terms of reference of a sub-committee, business shall not 

be transacted at a meeting of any sub-committee unless at least one third of 
the whole number of members of the sub-committee who are entitled to vote 
is present, provided that in no case shall the quorum of a sub-committee be 

less than three members.  
 

22.  Procedure Rules to Apply to Committees and Sub-Committees  

 
22.1  These Procedure Rules shall, with any necessary modifications, apply to 

meetings of sub-committees.  
 

23.  Interpretation  

 
23.1  The decision of the chair of the meeting on the question of the construction of 

the Procedure Rules and on any question of order not provided for by the 
Procedure Rules shall be final.  

 
23.2  The inclusion or exclusion of any specific matters in any other regulation or 

resolution shall not be construed as limiting in any way the scope of these 

Procedure Rules.  
 

23.3  Where the Monitoring Officer is not a solicitor holding a current practising 
certificate for the expression “Monitoring Officer” in these Procedure Rules 
there shall be substituted the expression “the solicitor to the Joint Committee” 

wherever it is appropriate and where there is a requirement at law that such 
action is to be taken by a solicitor.  

 
24.  Procedure Rules to be Given to Members  

 

24.1  A printed copy of these Procedure Rules and any other documents in respect 
of governance of the Joint Committee shall be given by the Monitoring Officer 

Page 64



of the host authority to every Member of the Joint Committee on his/her first 
being appointed to the Joint Committee.  

 
 

Page 65



APPENDIX C 
 

 
Decision Flow Charts 

  

Page 66



 

 
 

 
  

Page 67



 
  

Page 68



 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



CORPORATE 

Chairman: Councillor Ashton 

Vice Chairman: Councillor Stone 
Lead Officer: J Betts 

Date Items Contact Officer 
Purpose/Method of 

Consideration 

27-Sep-21 First Quarter Financial, Procurement and Performance 

Review 2021/2022 

K Pointon /  

V Higgins 

 

Medium Term Financial Plan Update K Pointon  

Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme Review & Focus on 

UC Implications 

J Wheeldon  

Update on Future High Street Fund (Part 2) (written or 

vebal) 

H Pakpahan  

Joint Venture Partnership N Rogers  

Vision Derbyshire A Stokes  

Select Committee Work Programme   

   

6-Dec-21 Medium Term Financial Plan Update K Pointon  

Second Quarter Financial, Procurement and Performance 
Review 2021/2022 

K Pointon /  
V Higgins 

 

Asset Management Update (TBC) K Webster  

Annual Report 2020/21 V Higgins  

Asset Management Policy and Strategy Document (TBC) K Webster  

Information Governance Update V Higgins  

Repairs to Toddbrook Reservoir Spillway  R Wilks  

Update on Future High Street Fund (Part 2) (verbal or 
written) 

N Rodgers / S Porru  

Select Committee Work Programme   

   

P
age 71

A
genda Item

 9



CORPORATE 
7-Feb-22 Third Quarter Financial, Procurement and Performance 

Review 2021/2022 
K Pointon /  
V Higgins 

 

Budget and Medium Term Financial Plan 2021/2022 K Pointon  

Health and Safety Annual Report 2020/21 D Owen  

Update on Future High Street Fund (Part 2) (verbal or 
written) 

N Rodgers / S Porru  

Select Committee Work Programme   

   

8-Mar-22 Update on Future High Street Fund (Part 2) 

(verbalorwritten) 

N Rodgers / S Porru  

Select Committee Work Programme   

   

   

To add in Advertising/Sponsorship Policy   

Facilities Management contract option appraisal (Part 2) K Webster  

Peer Review   

Courts and Tribunal Service T Calleia  

Procurement Strategy  N Kemp / E 
Hallworth 

 

Organisational Development Strategy T Cooper  

Staff Pay Grade Review A Stokes  

Victoria Hall – Project Update D Smith  

Review of Equality in Delivery of Services  L Vernon  

P
age 72



 

COMMUNITY 

Chairman: Councillor Quinn 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Sizeland 

Lead Officer: M Trillo 

Date Items Contact Officer Purpose/Method of 
Consideration 

15-Sep-21 ICS arrangements and impact on Glossop DCC / CCG  

Work Programme   

   

  24-Nov-21 AES Annual Performance Review AES Presentation 

AES Annual Performance Review Nicola Kemp Report 

EMAS / NWAS – Ambulance Waiting Times (TBC) Craig Whyles (EMAS)  

Work Programme   

   

26-Jan-22 Update from Derbyshire Police   

High Peak CVS Annual Report 2020/21 High Peak CVS Presentation 

Work Programme   

   

  9-Mar-22 Work Programme   

   

   

To add in Update from NWAS   

Update from Derbyshire Fire Service   

Update from Police & Crime Commissioner / Police   

High Peak Place NHS Derby and Derbyshire Clinical 

Commissioning Group  

Amy Busby  

PC Refurb Presentation Request of Cllr Kelly  

Update from Public Health Jonathan Wardle  

P
age 73



COMMUNITY 
Cultural Strategy M Forrester  

Refreshed Sport and Physical Activity Strategy Rob Wilks  

Review of Environment Enforcement Policy David Smith  

Fleet Procurement Strategy N Kemp  

Leisure Facilities TBC   

Environment Agency (flooding)   

   

P
age 74



       17 September 2021 

 

ECONOMY AND GROWTH  

Chairman: Councillor Siddall 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Grooby 

Lead Officer: Neil Rodgers 

Date Items Contact Officer 
Purpose/Method of 

Consideration 

16-Sept-21 Town Team Safer Walk and Ride Initiative M Briand  

Review and Renewal of the Torr Vale Mill Memorandum of 
Understanding 

J Bagnall  

Town Teams Travel Plan Consultation Buxton Town Team  

Buxton Projects Update  H Pakpahan  

HIF Update (part 2) J Brooks / S Porru  

Work Programme   

   

2-Dec-21 Consultation on the Buxton Water Planning Guidance 
Document 

M James  

Covid Recovery Programme (inc update on shop unit 
vacancies, tourism, website and possibly Peak Park)  

S Porru  

Land disposal – Waterswallows (TBC) K Webster  

Work Programme   

   

3-Feb-22 Developer Contributions SPD  M James / R Wooddisse  

Work Programme   

   

24-Mar-22 Work Programme   

   

To add in: Crescent Update   

Report from Transport Working Group   

P
age 75



       17 September 2021 

ECONOMY AND GROWTH  
Visit Peak District   

Old Nestle Buxton Site   

Industrial Units – capacity, vacancy rates, brownfield sites   

Buxton Neighbourhood Plan M James / R Wooddisse  

Whaley Bridge Neighbourhood Plan M James / P Home  

Bowden Lane / A6 Land disposal to PCC K Webster /M Hooson  

Granby Road Disposal S Porru  

Review of the Growth Strategy L Wetton  

 A57 Link Road project Local Impact Report M James  

 Miry Meadow Right of Way Disposal   K Webster/N Ravenscroft  

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

P
age 76



Document is Restricted

Page 77

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 79

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 To approve the minutes of the previous meeting
	6 Medium Term Financial Plan Update
	Appendix A  for Medium Term Financial Plan Update

	8 Vision Derbyshire
	9 Select Committee Work Programme
	12 Exempt Minutes
	13 Joint Venture for the Provision of Facilities Management and Housing Repairs

